Public Document Pack

Havering

ALTBERTYX LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

AGENDA
1.00 pm Wednesday, 12 Committee Room 2 -
UP September 2018 Town Hall
Members: 16, Quorum: 6
BOARD MEMBERS:
Elected Members: ClIr Gillian Ford

Clir Robert Benham
Cllr Jason Frost (Chairman)
Cllr Damian White

Officers of the Council: Andrew Blake-Herbert, Chief Executive
Tim Aldridge, Director of Children's Services
Barbara Nicholls, Director of Adult Services
Mark Ansell, Interim Director of Public Health

Havering Clinical Dr Atul Aggarwal, Chair, Havering Clinical
Commissioning Group: Commissioning Group (CCG)
Dr Gurdev Saini, Board Member Havering CCG
Ceri Jacob, BHR CCG
Steve Rubery, BHR CCG

Other Organisations: Anne-Marie Dean, Healthwatch Havering
Jacqui Van Rossum, NELFT
Christopher Bown, BHRUT
Danny Batten, NHS England

For information about the meeting please contact:
Victoria Freeman 01708 433862
victoria.freeman@onesource.co.uk




What is the Health and Wellbeing Board?

Havering’'s Health and Wellbeing Board (HWB) is a Committee of the Council
on which both the Council and local NHS and other bodies are represented.
The Board works towards ensuring people in Havering have services of the
highest quality which promote their health and wellbeing and to narrow
inequalities and improve outcomes for local residents. It will achieve this by
coordinating the local NHS, social care, children's services and public health
to develop greater integrated working to make the best use of resources
collectively available.

What does the Health and Wellbeing Board do?

As of April 2013, Havering’s HWB is responsible for the following key
functions:

e Championing the local vision for health improvement, prevention / early
intervention, integration and system reform

e Tackling health inequalities

e Using the Joint Strategic Needs Assessment (JSNA)and other
evidence to determine priorities

e Developing a Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy (JHWS)

e Ensuring patients, service users and the public are engaged in
improving health and wellbeing

e Monitoring the impact of its work on the local community by considering
annual reports and performance information



CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman will announce details of the arrangements in case of fire or
other events that might require the meeting room or building’s evacuation.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

(If any) — receive.

DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

Members are invited to disclose any interest in any of the items on the
agenda at this point of the meeting.

Members may still disclose any interest in any item at any time prior to the
consideration of the matter.

MINUTES, ACTION LOG AND INDICATOR SET (Pages 1 - 14)

To approve as a correct record the minutes of the Board held on 11 July
2018 and to authorise the Chairman to sign them, and to consider the
Action Log and Indicator Set (attached).

HEALTHWATCH ANNUAL REPORT (Pages 15 - 40)

Report attached.

HEALTH IMPROVEMENT REPORT (Pages 41 - 70)

Report attached.

SEND STRATEGY (Pages 71 - 88)

Report attached.

CANCER (Pages 89 - 126)

Reports and presentations attached.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

Wednesday 14 November, 1 pm, Havering Town Hall.



—< o]

DECLARING INTERESTS FLOWCHART — QUESTIONS TO ASK YOURSELF

What matters are being discussed?

V4

Does the business relate to or is it likely to affect a disclosable pecuniary interest. These will include the
interests of a spouse or civil partner (and co-habitees):

+ any employment, office, trade, profession or vocation that they carry on for profit or gain;

« any sponsorship that they receive including contributions to their expenses as a councillor; or the
councillor's election expenses from a Trade Union;

« any land licence or tenancy they have in Havering

« any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and them;

+ any current contracts leases or tenancies between the Council and any organisation with land in Havering
in they are a partner, a paid Director, or have a relevant interest in its shares and securities;

+ any organisation which has land or a place of business in Havering and in which they have a relevant interest in its
shares or its securities.

rrzz0wwxoxmyu

“omoxm-Hz—

<APr - Z2COoOmmo

S omam-4HdzZ~—

o YES Declare Interest and Leave

Might a decision in relation to that business be reasonably be regarded as affecting (to a greater extent than
the majority of other Council Tax payers, ratepayers or inhabitants of ward affected by the decision)

+ Your well-being or financial position; or

» The well-being or financial position of:

o A member of your family or any person with whom you have a close association; or

- Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are
a partner, or any company of which they are directors;

- Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;

o Any body of which you are a member or in a position of general control or management and to
which you are appointed or nominated by your Authority; or

o Any body exercising functions of a public nature, directed to charitable purposes or whose

member or in a position of general control or management?

principal includes the influence of public opinion or policy (including any political party or tracde union) of which you are a

You must disclose the fo)
existence and nature of your
personal interests

AV4

Would a member of the public, with o )
knowledge of the relevant facts, You can participate in the
reasonably regard your personal meeting and vote (or
interest to be so significant that it is NO remain in the room if not a
likely to prejudice your member of the mesting)

Y

E

S

- Does the matter affect your financial position or the financial position of any person or body
through whom you have a personal interest?

- Does the matter relate to an approval, consent, licence, permission or registration that affects
you or any person or body with which you have a personal interest? NO
- Does the matter not fall within one of the exempt categories of decisions?

Y
E
s

Speak to Monitoring Officer in advance of the meeting to avoid allegations of
corruption or bias







This page is intentionally left blank



Agenda Item 4

MINUTES OF A MEETING OF THE
HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD
Town Hall
11 July 2018 (1.00 - 4.00 pm)

Present:

Elected Members: Councillors Jason Frost (Chairman), Robert Benham and Gillian
Ford.

Officers of the Council: Andrew Blake-Herbert, Chief Executive; Tim Aldridge,
Director of Children’s Services; Barbara Nicholls, Director of Adult Services and
Mark Ansell, Interim Director of Public Health.

Havering Clinical Commissioning Group (CCG): Steve Rubery, Interim Director of
Delivery and Performance Barking, Havering and Redbridge Clinical
Commissioning Group and Dr Gurdev Saini, Board Member Havering Clinical
Commissioning Group.

Other Organisations: Anne-Marie Dean, Executive Chairman, Healthwatch
Havering.

Also Present: Claire Alp, Senior Public Health Specialist; Victoria Freeman,
Democratic Services Officer; Elaine Greenway, Consultant in Public Health;
Caroline Penfold, Head of Children’s and Adult with Disabilities Service (Learning
and Achievement) and Dr Andrew Rixom, Consultant in Public Health .

63 CHAIRMAN'S ANNOUNCEMENTS

The Chairman gave details of the arrangements in case of fire or other
event that may require the evacuation of the meeting room or building.

The Chairman advised that he had agreed to amend the order of the
agenda, to take Item No. 10 prior to Iltem No. 6.

64 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies were received from:
Dr Atul Aggarwal, Chair, Havering Clinical Commissioning Group
Matthew Hopkins, Barking, Havering and Redbridge University Hospitals’
NHS Trust (Magda Smith substituting)
Councillor Damian White, London Borough of Havering

65 DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS

There were no declarations of interest made in any items on the agenda.

Page 1



Health & Wellbeing Board, 11 July 2018

66

67

68

MINUTES, ACTION LOG AND INDICATOR SET

The minutes of the meeting held on the 14 March were agreed as a correct
record and signed by the Chairman.

The following items were noted in respect of the action log:

e 17.26 — The ‘See Change’ documentary produced and edited by
children in care, had been premiered on the 6 March 2018 at
Premiere Cinema, Romford.

e 17.27 — Members had requested that the exempt document
containing data on incidences of cases referred to courts be
circulated to the Board. The action remained outstanding.

e 17.28 — The Board would receive a presentation on the JSNA at a
later date.

e 17.29 The Services in Havering for People who have visual
impairment was on the agenda.

Members received the Health and Wellbeing Board Indictor set which
provided an overview of the health of residents and the quality of care
services available to them. The BHRUT had missed the 92% national
incomplete standard for Referral to Treatment since August 2017. A revised
recovery plan was agreed with NHS Improvement with the aim of returning
to delivering the 92% standard in April 2018, however the target had not
been met due to the closure of dental services commissioned by the NHS,
winter pressures having impacted on surgical capacity, BHRUT being
placed into financial special measures by NHSE London and a higher GP
demand in some specialities than planned. Members requested than a
regular report on Referral to Treatment performance be provided to the
Board.

RESOLVED:

That the Board noted the changes.

HEALTH AND WELLBEING STRATEGY - NEXT STEPS

The Havering Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy was due to expire in
2019. The Board agreed the steps and timescales for developing a new
Joint Health and Wellbeing Strategy as detailed in the report.

HAVERING OBESITY PREVENTION STRATEGY - ANNUAL UPDATE
Havering's Prevention of Obesity Strategy 2016-19 and associated action

plan, published in April 2016 was focused on shaping the environment to
promote healthy eating and physical activity, supporting a culture that sees

Page 2



Health & Wellbeing Board, 11 July 2018

physical activity and healthy eating as the norm, and to prompt individuals to
change, primarily through self-help.

The Board received an update on the progress made with implementation of
the 2017/18 action plan, highlights included the Health Impact Assessment
of the Local Plan; piloting the Health Early Years London awards
programme; the introduction of Starting Solid Food sessions in Children’s
Centres; the launch of the Veggie Run app and the Healthy Schools London
programme incorporating curriculum support. Excess weight remained
broadly stable amongst 4-5 year olds and adults but continued to increase
amongst 10-11 year olds; only 13.8% of young people and 59% of adults in
Havering achieved the recommended levels of physical activity relevant to
their age group; and just half of young people aged 15 (49%) and adults
(57.1%) in Havering eat five portions of fruit and vegetables per day.

It was noted that national policy was changing to force industry to take more
action e.g. limit advertising targeting children.

Members discussed the options to limit access to fast food outlets. It was
noted that that schools could adopt a closed gate policy at lunchtimes. 12 of
the boroughs 18 secondary schools operated a closed gate policy. Many
schools buy into the Healthy School Programme. The Board agreed that a
letter be sent to the Chair of Governors of those schools that did not operate
a closed gate policy, advising them of the advantages of such a policy.

Members also discussed the benefit of allowing ball games on Council
owned property and noted that the Health Impact Assessment on the Local
Plan promoted opportunities to be physically active.

The Local Authority Early Help and Public Health Services and the
Voluntary Sector had collaborated on a breast feeding campaign; and
central government had introduced the Healthy Pupil Capital fund, which
schools could use to fund various health improving schemes including
funding water fountains. An example of active areas on Hungarian streets
was discussed and it was noted that the Rainham regeneration plans
incorporated a linear park. Members suggested that comparisons with other
similar local authorities might identify areas that ‘bucked’ the trend and
might have good practice that could be adopted.

Concern was raised regarding the saturation of food retail outlets close to
schools and it was proposed that consideration be given to implementing a
saturation policy to restrict further outlets. There was support for restrictions
on advertising of unhealthy choices close to schools.

RESOLVED: That

i)  The 2018/19 action plan be approved without further reference to
the Board.

Page 3



Health & Wellbeing Board, 11 July 2018

69

70

ii) The next update be provided at the May 2019 meeting of the
Health and Wellbeing Board, The Board give consideration to
maintaining obesity as a priority and long term commitment.

SERVICES IN HAVERING FOR PEOPLE WHO HAVE A VISUAL
IMPAIRMENT: A REVIEW

The Board received a report from Healthwatch Havering which reviewed the
services in the borough for people who have a visual impairment.

The report made 18 recommendations, including issuing and sharing
information regarding Certificates of Visual Impairments.

Concern was raised that the visually impaired were signposted to Moorfields
Eye Hospital by Accident and Emergency and consideration was not given
to the difficulties they would experience in travelling there. It was suggested
that Moorfields Eye Hospital and Queens Hospital work together to develop
a closer link.

The Board requested that Public Health produce a report identifying
opportunities to prevent sight loss to complement the report by Healthwatch
about quality of care post diagnosis.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.
HEALTH PROTECTION FORUM ANNUAL REPORT 2017-2018

The Board received a report from the multi-agency Health Protection Forum,
which illustrated how partners continue to work well together to protect the
health of the population of Havering. The work programme for 2018/19
would continue to cover routine business relating to immunisations,
screening and other aspects of health protection. 7 topics would receive
additional focus during 2018/19. These had been selected either because
of the need to make improvements, or because of the particular value of
partner organisations coming together to consider how to strengthen local
arrangements. The topics selected were the seasonal influenza
vaccination, MMR vaccination, antimicrobial resistance, tuberculosis, air
guality, meningitis vaccination and pandemic flu plan.

During discussion, concern was expressed regarding idling taxis in the
borough and requested that there be proactive encouragement to reduce
idling in taxi ranks. The decision to not focus on the shingles vaccination
was questioned due to the age profile of residents in the borough.

The style of the report had been changed following feedback in 2017 that

the report was too detailed and the Board welcomed the new style and
found the presentation helpful.

Page 4



Health & Wellbeing Board, 11 July 2018

71

72

The Board requested that NHS England be asked to describe what is being
done locally to increase uptake of shingles vaccination.

RESOLVED:
That the report be noted.

DRUGS AND ALCOHOL HARM REDUCTION STRATEGY ACTION PLAN
PROGRESS AND REVIEW

The Board received The Havering Drug and Alcohol Harm Reduction 2018
Progress Report, which summarised the main policy, highlighted successes,
and summarised some of the key actions for 2018-19. A detailed Refreshed
Draft Acton Plan 2018-19 was discussed which supported the three
priorities of the strategy: preventing harm to individuals, preventing harm to
the family and preventing harm to the community.

There were 70 actions in the 2016-17 plan and 13 were completed in the
first year. A further 31 had been completed in the second year (2017-18)
with good progress on many of those still remaining.

The Board suggested that county lines needed to be included as an area of
focus and that London comparisons be provided and it was noted that
although the county lines could be reported to the Board, the Community
Safety Partnership held responsibility for its monitoring.

It was requested that comparison data be provided, however noted that in
some instances data was only available at MPS BCU or London level.

RESOLVED:
That the Board noted the progress made in year two, as set out in the:

e Drug and Alcohol Harm Reduction 2018 Progress Report
e Refreshed Draft Action Plan 2018-19.

COMMUNITY URGENT CARE CONSULTATION - 'RIGHT CARE, RIGHT
PLACE, FIRST TIME'

The Board received a presentation on the Community urgent care
consultation, ‘Right care, right place, first time’.

The current situation had arisen due to GPs and the Accident and
Emergency Departments being under increasing pressure, NHS funding
challenges, challenges for GPs and practices, patients wanting to see their
own GP but not always being able to get appointments quickly and the
public not being aware of where to seek urgent help if unable to see their
own GP.

Page 5



Health & Wellbeing Board, 11 July 2018

The consultation was looking at those services the public could use when
they could not see their own GP or a pharmacist was unable to assist, and
included GP access hubs, walk-in centres, and GP out-of-hours services.
The consultation was not looking at changes to Accident and Emergency
services at any of the local hospitals or how GPs ran their practices or to
pharmacies.

The need for change was due to people’s confusion by the current mix of
services, with services being similar or duplicated, the population growth,
the digital future and the need to spend NHS money wisely.

The proposal was to make it easier to access services, by making the NHS
111 the number to call for urgent health care advice or services, to book
urgent GP appointments at one of the 12 locations with a standardised
service so patients know what to expect; to update facilities at some
locations with better diagnostic tests at local GP or community locations;
and to simplify where to go for minor illness and injury. It was highlighted
that the consultation was not on changes to emergency care services or to
Accident and Emergency services at any of the local hospitals.

The following options were provided:
Option 1:

e Four Urgent Treatment Centres - King George Hospital, Queen’s
Hospital, Barking Community Hospital and Harold Wood Polyclinic.

e Eight community locations for bookable urgent appointments (including
Loxford Polyclinic and South Hornchurch Health Centre).

Option 2:

e Two Urgent Treatment Centres — King George Hospital and Queen’s
Hospital.

e Ten community locations for bookable urgent appointments (including
barking Community Hospital, Harold Wood Polyclinic, Loxford Polyclinic
and South Hornchurch Health Centre).

Views were sought on whether the proposals would make it easier for
people to get urgent care and understand their choices and on the options
on changes to walk in services.

Members discussed the rationale for Option 1 and the need to continue to
have provision in all areas. If enhanced treatment were needed, the facility
would be available in the four locations. The challenge would be to change
patient’s perceptions and behaviour in accessing services by marketing the
services and educating the public.

The Board requested that information detailing what was on offer for
paediatrics across the borough be circulated to members.

Page 6



Health & Wellbeing Board, 11 July 2018

73

74

The Board agreed that the outcome of the consultation be presented at a
later meeting.

LOCAL AREA INSPECTION OF SUPPORT FOR CHILDREN WITH
SPECIAL EDUCATIONAL NEEDS AND DISABILITIES (SEND)

The Board received a report which highlighted the outcomes of the Local
Area Inspection of support for children with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) which took place between the 26 February and 2 March
2018.

Having looked at the following key areas, Inspectors identified no serious
concerns in Havering:

a) The effectiveness of the local area in identifying children and young
people’s special educational need and/or disabilities.

b) The effectiveness of the local area in assessing and meeting the
needs of children and young people who have special educational
needs and / or disabilities.

c) The effectiveness of the local area in improving outcomes for children
and young people who have special educational needs and / or
disabilities.

Ofsted and CQC reinforced the need to continually improve SEND services
and the inspectors ratified the action plan in place. The Board
acknowledged the constraints of resources and capacity necessary for
Education Health and Care Plan assessments. Investigations into the
efficiencies of joint commissioning were being undertaken, with the view of
collaborating with Barking and Dagenham and Redbridge and to build on
best practice.

The Board discussed the importance of working further with schools and
post 16 provision and bringing SEND into the wider discussion of
employment opportunities and apprenticeships.

The SEND Executive Board’s refreshed improvement plan of the key areas
of development would be presented to the next meeting of the Board for
information and agreement.

RESOLVED:
That the Board noted the comments of the report.

CLINICAL GOVERNANCE OF PUBLIC HEALTH COMMISSIONED
SERVICES

The Clinical Governance of Public Health Commissioned Services report
explained where the clinical services public health commissions have a
range of best practice, guidelines, and national standards to support their
procurement and operation. The providers of clinical services are also

Page 7



Health & Wellbeing Board, 11 July 2018

75

subject inspection by the Care Quality Commission Some services have
very established governance structures and national monitoring of
performance. In addition, standard public health services contract has
clauses relating to maintaining, improving, and reporting quality issues. This
is a standing item in contract monitoring meetings. The report did identify
that the Health Visiting service had capacity and investment issues that
adversely affected their ability to offer the prescribed checks to all 0-4 year
olds and had to prioritise their work; and that in a framework arrangement
for a low volume service, it was difficult to monitor quality of multiple
potential providers.

A member raised that the Health Visitors Alliance Group had suggested that
health visitors have a lead on parental mental health, and proposed that
consideration could be given to this in the restructuring.

RESOLVED:

That the report be noted and for a future report to be presented to the
Board.

DATE OF NEXT MEETING

The next meeting of the Board was scheduled to be held on the 12
September 2018, commencing at 1.00pm.

Chairman

Page 8



6 obed

Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log (following July 2018 Board meeting)

No. Date Board Non-Board Action Date for RAG rating Comments
Raised Member Member completion
Action Owner | Action Owner
17.27 | 14.03.18 Barbara Brian Boxhall In terms of safeguarding, members 11.07.18 Anne-
Nicholls / Tim requested that the exempt document Marie Dean to
Aldridge containing data on incidents on cases clarify the action
referred to courts be circulated to the with Brian
Board. Boxhall.
18.1 11.07.18 Steve Rubery Regular report on Referral to Treatment Ongoing
performance to be provided.
18.2 11.07.18 Tim Aldridge / | Claire Alp A letter to be sent to the Chair of 12 September Verbal update to
Mark Ansell Governors of those schools that did not 2018 be provided at
operate a closed gate policy, advising them the meeting on
of the advantages of such a policy. the 12
September 2018.
18.4 11.07.18 Mark Ansell Public Health to produce a report March 2019 Added to
identifying opportunities to prevent sight Forward Plan
loss to complement the report by
Healthwatch about quality of care post
diagnosis.
18.5 11.07.18 Mark Ansell Elaine NHS England to be asked to describe what
Greenway is being done locally to increase uptake of
shingles vaccination.
18.6 11.07.18 Steve Rubery Information detailing what was on offer for
paediatrics across the borough to be
circulated to members.
18.6 11.07.18 Steve Rubery The outcome of the community urgent Added to

care consultation - 'Right care, right place,
first time' consultation to be presented at a

Forward Plan




0T obed

later meeting.

18.6

11.07.18

Tim Aldridge

Caroline
Penfold

SEND Executive Board’s refreshed
improvement plan of the key areas

of development to be presented to the
next meeting of the Board for
information and agreement.

12 September
2018




Health and Wellbeing Board Indicator Set: 2018

The following high-level indicator set reflects the priorities and themes of the Health and Wellbeing Board Strategy. The first 10 core indicators provide an overview of the health of residents and the quality of

care services available to them. Below the core indicators are additional indicators covering those topics of current and special interest to the Board which will change over time.

What is Havering Comparators
# Indicator (Healthy Life expectancy) Trend
Good? Number of Years London RAG England RAG  Target
1 Healthy life expectancy, male High - 66 64 63 -
2 Healthy life expectancy, female High - 64 64 64 -
What is Havering Comparators
# Indicator (Other) Trend
Good? Count  Rate (%) London RAG England RAG  Target
3 Physically active adults High - - 59 65 66 -
4 Overweight (including) obese children, Year 6 Low t 1032 39 39 34 -
o
Q
@
— 5 Achieving a good (or better) level of development at age 5 (EYFSP) High - - 71 71 69 73
|_\
6 Good blood sugar control in people with diabetes High t - 57 61 62 -
7 A&E attendees discharged with no investigation and no significant treatment Low ‘ 12,367 - - - -
8 NHS friends and family recommendation of NHS Havering GPs High - 251 84 88 90 -
9 Satisfaction with Adult Social Care services High - - 62 60 64 -
10 Mortality attributable to air pollution Low - - 6.0 6.4 5.3 -
11 Prescribed Long acting reversible contraception (LARC) excluding injections High - 1,394 2.8 3.5 . 4.6 . -
Referral to treatment (similar to performance last reported to HWB July 2018) )
12 High 18,824 88% 92

M Increasing / better
‘ Decreasing / better

RAG rating I sSignificantly better than comparator

- Significantly worse than comparator

4 Increasing / worse
‘ Decreasing / worse

Trend rating

RAG

RAG

Period

2014-16

2014-16

Period

2016/17

2016/17

2016/17

2016/17

2017/18

Jun-18

2015/16

2016

2016

Jun-18

Similar to comparator

Comparison not made

Update status

Unchanged

Unchanged

Update status

Unchanged

Unchanged

Unchanged

Unchanged

Unchanged

Updated

Unchanged

Unchanged

Unchanged

Updated



Page 12



There are over 250K Havering residents. An increase of 10% in the last 10 years, with similar growth projected for the coming decade. Havering has the oldest population in London (46K residents aged 65 and older, 14K aged 80 or older) but

the number of births each year has increased by 33% in the last 10 years to nearly 3.3k. Havering is gradually becoming more ethnically diverse, but 83% of residents are White British; a higher proportion than both London (45%) and England

(80%). Havering is relatively affluent, but 10K children and young people aged <20 live in low income families and there are pockets of significant deprivation to the north and south of the borough. Average life expectancy is better than the

national average with a significant gap berween the least deprived and deprived areas. Most residents enjoy good health but 18% of working age people have a disability or long term illness.

# Indicator

1 Healthy life expectancy, male

2 Healthy life expectancy, female

3 Physically active adults

4 Overweight (including) obese children, Year 6

5 Achieving a good (or better) level of development at age 5 (EYFSP)

¢T obed

6 Good blood sugar control in people with diabetes

7 A&E attendees discharged with no investigation and no significant treatment

8 NHS friends and family recommendation of NHS Havering GPs

9 Satisfaction with Adult Social Care services

10 Mortality attributable to air pollution

11 Prescribed Long acting reversible contraception (LARC) excluding injections

12 Referral to treatment

See This is Havering for further key geographic and socio-economic facts and figures

Description

The average number of years a male newborn would expect to live in good health based on mortality rates and self-reported good health

The average number of years a female newborn would expect to live in good health based on contemporary mortality rates and prevalence of self-

reported good health

Percentage of adults achieving at least 150 minutes of physical activity per week in accordance with UK Chief Medical Officer recommended

guidelines (current method)

Proportion of children aged 10-11 classified as overweight or obese. Children are classified as overweight (including obese) if their BMI is on or above

the 85th centile of the British 1990 growth reference (UK90) according to age and sex

Percentage of pupils achieving at least the expected level in the Early Learning Goals within the three prime areas of learning and within literacy and

mathematics; this is classed as having a good level of development; The local target set by the Havering childrens team is 73%

The percentage of patients with diabetes in whom the last IFCC-HbA1c is 59 mmol/mol (equivalent to HbAlc of 7.5% in DCCT values) or less (or

equivalent test/reference range depending on local laboratory) in the preceding 12 months

Havering GP-registered patients who attend BHRUT A&E who are discharged without an investigation and with no significant treatment; this suggest

that attendance at A&E was not appropriate

The Friends and Family Test asks patients how likely, on a scale ranging from extremely unlikely to extremely likely, they are to recommend the

service to their friends and family if they needed similar care or treatment

The percentage of adult social care survey respondents who expressed strong satisfaction with the care and support services they received

Percentage of annual all-cause adult mortality attributable to human-made particulate air pollution (measured as fine particulate matter <2.5um)

Percentage of LARC excluding injections prescribed by GP and Sexual and Reproductive Health Services per 100 resident females aged 15-44 years; a

high figure suggests that there is access to a choice of contraceptive methods

Percentage of Havering GP-registered patients referred to BHRUT, treated within the expected timescales

https://www.havering.gov.uk/info/20073/public health/405/haverings health



https://www.havering.gov.uk/info/20073/public_health/405/haverings_health

Page 14



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

Agenda Iltem 5

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD 12 September 2018

Subject Heading:

Board Lead:

Report Author and contact details:

Healthwatch Havering Annual Report

Anne-Marie Dean, Chairman, Healthwatch
Havering

Anne-Marie Dean, Chairman, Healthwatch
Havering

Tel: 01708 303300

Anne-
marie.dean@healthwatchhavering.co.uk

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health

and Wellbeing Strategy

X] Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services

later on

Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right

place at the right time

X Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

This report provides a summary of the work of Healthwatch Havering over the last

year.

Page 15



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

The Health and Wellbeing Board is recommended to:

Note the report.

No formal decisions are required arising from this report.

REPORT DETAIL

The attached report summarises the work of Healthwatch Havering and is submitted
on an annual basis for consideration by the Health and Wellbeing Board. The
Chairman of Healthwatch Havering will give further details at the meeting of the
organisation’s work during this period.

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

None

‘ BACKGROUND PAPERS ‘

None.

Page 16



healthwoatch

Havering

Annual Report 2017/18

Helping to make sure that your views are heard

‘?L’ abed

. Encouraging services to work for everyone equally

Giving you a greater say in your own care

Everyone working together



8T abed

Contents Page

We are working to make sure people from
every community in Havering have their say
about heath and care

Message from our Chair
Highlights of our Year
Who are we and why you are our priority

Making a Difference - our role with the CQC and
Healthwatch England

Enter and View visits
Working in Partnership

Supporting you to Have Your Say- Right Care, Right
Place, Right Time

Making a Difference Together
Our People and our decision making processes
Our Finances

Our Plans for 2018/2019



6T abed

Message
from the

Chair

“It is more important than
ever, to find out what people
need and it is your views that

help to shape services and

make a difference”

Welcome and thank you for taking the time to read our report. This report
updates you on our progress and our plans for 2018/2019.

We have made over 60 recommendations to improve services following
our Enter View programme this year. Our visits have included 10 GP
practices 3 hospital visits and 13 Nursing and Care Homes, our reports are
available on our website.

New this year is the Home Visiting team in partnership with Havering
borough council to seek the views of residents who are receiving home
care support

It is vital that local people express their views on our Urgent and
Emergency services which need to make a step-change to improve the
availability and timeliness of clinical care. Over 340 residents shared
their thoughts, residents attending the Havering Over Fifties Forum
(HOFF), CarePoint and Rainham Village Children’s Centre, helped us to
provide a comprehensive report about what was important for them, their
families, their friends and as their role as a carer.

We have been listening to residents and voluntary organisations who have
repeatedly raised concerns about Sight Services. We have captured your
views and experience and just published a report which has been
distributed both locally to BHRUT, the Borough, the CCG and to national
organisations including the CQC, the Royal College of Ophthalmologists,
the Pocklington Trust and the Royal National Institute for the Blind.

None of this would have been achievable without our team and our
volunteer members - thank you for your hard work. Thank you to every
person and organisation that has worked with us during the year your
support is invaluable



0z abed

Highlights from our year

Thank you to our volunteers this is what we have achieved

Over 50 residents living in

Sheltered Housing have
expressed their views on
their domiciliary care

27 Enter and View Over 60

Reports, Care and Nursing
Homes, GP practices,

recommendations to
improve services

1600 people or more

have played a part in providing us
with their views and concerns

Working with other
organisations we have

attended over 150

meetings and events

Over 55 followers on
Twitter

hospitals



Who are we and
why you are our
priority

and experiences

Share your views s

Healthwatch is a national initiative created in 2012
following the Public Enquiry into the failings at Mid
Staffordshire Hospital by Sir Robert Francis QC now
know as the Francis report. This report resulted in the
government making it law that people should be at the
centre of care

Healthwatch’s role is to understand the needs and
ideas of different people

Make sure your views are heard by the people who
decide things about health and social care

Healthwatch also have the power to Enter and View
organisations that receive public sector funding,
making sure that services are working for you and the
people you care about

Our reports on local organisations are published on our
website and include our actions and recommendations
to deliver positive outcomes for people



22 abed

Making a Difference - Our role with the Care Quality
Commission (CQC) and Healthwatch England (HWE)

v National weekly CQC reports are checked for v All our Enter and View reports are provided to the
reports on local providers CQC and the Healthwatch England database

v All local provider CQC reports are discussed at our v All investigative reports such as the RTT report are
monthly Enter and View panel for consideration and provided to the CQC and Healthwatch England

rioritising for a visit : : :
P s v" Prior to CQC inspections we are requested to

v" We used the CQC GP triangulation tool provide feedback to the CQC. This is drawn from
our Enter and View reports, concerns that are
raised by local people at the meetings and events
that we attend. We also ensure the positive

v Havering CQC ratings demonstrated a high number
of GP practices with a ‘Requires Improvement’

rating comments are shared with the CQC

¥ Supported the CCG on a pilot project to improve v" We have been members of the Quality Risk Profiling
CQC poorly performing GP practises with successful Review for BHRUT which included the CCG, NHSI
results and the CQC

v National reports from CQC and Healthwatch
England also influence our work. An example
would be the Care Homes report to which
Healthwatch Havering also contributed



gz abed

Fogetiaer

This activity has been undertaken by the relevant persons
during the financial year in respect of statutory obligations The number of visits undertaken by

Section 221
our volunteer team

oo [§F
Dooo 00 DD 10 Residential Homes
ST no|ope 10 GP Practices
.

3 Nursing Homes
3 Queen’s Hospital
1 Mental Health Service

Read the reports on our website
www. healthwatchhavering.com

See Appendix 1 for more detail



http://www.healthwatchhavering.com/

7z abed

Working in Partnership - is invaluable to ensuring that
we make a difference

Together here are examples of our work for some of the most vulnerable in our community

v" In partnership with the CCG seeking the views
of people about urgent and emergency care
services -Right Care, Right Place, First Time

w’, v Our report on Sight Services is responding to
the concerns expressed by local people

LEARNING v Raising concerns about the withdrawal of out-
2 DSBILIES - of-hours pharmacy services at Harold Wood

7 0D ATTSH Polyclinic

v Working with the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee on the delays experienced by
patients referred for treatment at BHRUT

v’ Learning Disabilities and Autism - being part
of the wider network of organisations working
together to improve health and social care
services for individuals and their families and
carers



Gz obed

Strategic objective

Supporting
you to have
your Sa

.your P )

voice™
! counts

« We want more services to use your views to shape
the health and care support you need today and in
the future

* Produce strong evidence which those who make
decisions about health and social care can use

This year

v Over 340 residents took part in the survey seeking
their views on designing new models of urgent care

v'Over 150 people, contributed to our Sight Services
report, reflecting the views of members of the
Partially Sighted Society (Havering), Sight Action
(Havering), the Havering Over Fifties Forum (HOFF),
staff and patients

v'Over 50 Residents living in Sheltered
Accommodation have shared their views on the
Domiciliary Home Care Services which they are
receiving (at the Borough’s request)



9z abed

Right Care, Right Place, Right Time - research commissioned by Havering
Clinical Commissioning Group and carried out by Healthwatch Havering

We worked in partnership with other local
organisations who could bring their
experience and knowledge to the research

v CarePoint
v'Havering Over Fifties Forum (HOFF)
v'Rainham Village Children's Centre

The CCG were seeking views on two
priorities

v Providing more bookable appointments
when you have an urgent health care
concern or need

v'Making urgent care more accessible
through digital channels (online booking,
digital apps and resources)

Target Audience

v’ Parents of young children
v Older People

v'Young Adults



)2 abed

Right Care, Right Place, Right Time

Reflecting a wide range of views taking part in this consultation process

Ethnicity/Background

Any White

Any Mixed ethnic

Any Asian

Any Black

Other / prefer not to say
Disability
Physical/mobility issue
Learning disability/mental health issue
Visual Impairment
Hearing Impairment
None

Other

72.24% (242)
3.58% (12)
8.36% (28)

10.15% (34)

5.67% (19)

15.66% (52)

13.55% (45)
1.81% (6)
2.71% (9)

71.08% (236)
2.71% (9)

Age
Under 18

18 — 24years
25 —35years
35 —44years
45 - 54years
55 — 64years
65 — 74years
75 years plus
Gender
Male

Female

Other/Prefer not to say

0.29% (1)
7.35% (25)

35.29% (120)
18.24% (62)
12.94% (44)
8.82% (30)
10.88% (37)
5.00% (17)

20.00% (66)
78.18% (258)
1.82% (6)



gz abed

Strategic Objective

Making a Difference
Together

Listening to your views and experiences and using our
reports to reflect these in our recommendations. The
recommendations are sent to the management of the
organisation, the CQC, Healthwatch England,
commissioning organisations and accessible to the
public on our website.

Enter and View visits identify where
improvements can be made to enhance the
overall care and ambience of residences

Visiting GP practices recommending ideas that
you have suggested during consultations

Seeking improvements in the care of the
elderly at Queens Hospital

We visited 10 GP practices and we made a range of
recommendations including:

v
v
v

v
v

Provide a loop system for the hard of hearing

Provide alarm systems for reception staff

Consider installing queuing system for phone calls that respond positively
to patients waiting to speak to reception staff

Improve the appearance of the premises

Positively manage and help enable patients to remember to attend for
their appointments or to remember to cancel the appointment in a timely
manner

We have visited 13 residential and nursing homes and we made a
range of recommendations including:

AN NI NN

Improve the décor

Provide more music to entertain residents

Review staffing levels

Improve the management of falls

Re-design large sitting room to provide better facilities

Re-design the laundry area to get better separation between the dirty and
clean areas

We have made 2 visits to Queen’s Hospital and made
recommendations, in response to which the hospital (as always)
has developed action plans that are included in the reports on our
website:

v
v

v

Need for general improvement in the approach to feeding patients
Training for staff ensuring the link between food deliver and infection
control

Best practice seen on some wards to serving foods needs to be applied to
all wards




62 abed

The Board consists of directors, staff and volunteer
members

Our volunteers are all Board members

Volunteer members complete a training programme which
includes Enter and View training, Mental Health Act and
Deprivation of Liberties

Volunteer members are full voting members of our Board

The Board generally meets bi-monthly and the details of
the Board meeting dates and the minutes of the meeting is
published on our website

The Board undertakes 2 training and development meetings
a year, this includes the setting of our objectives and work
plan for the year ahead

During the year external training and educational
opportunities are also provided

Our people and our decision making
processes

Our policies and procedures are all discussed at our Board
meetings

Our governance documents provide the framework ensuring
that we operate efficiently and fairly in accordance with
our statutory and legal requirements

The Board has adopted the Healthwatch Good Governance
Assurance Tool and Volunteer Members will lead the review
this year

The work has been completed in respect of General Data
Protection Regulation and will be formally adopted at the
Board in May 2018 (see Appendix 2)

Healthwatch Havering is, in legal terms, a company limited
by guarantee called Havering Healthwatch Limited. As a
company limited by guarantee, it has no shareholders and
is prohibited by law from distributing any financial surplus
(or profit)



Our Finances

Summary statement of Income and Expenditure

For more detail, please refer to the annual accounts available on our website at http://www.healthwatchhavering.co.uk/our-activities

EXPENDITURE SUMMARY

m Staff costs ,
£85,203

o€ abed

m Other,

£2,250

® Taxation and B Back office costs
Regulation , , £25,939
£8,994

Public
consultation and
events , £257

Volunteering
support , £570

Training &
Development ,
£1,423

INCOME SUMMARY
Interest received l £43

Use of reserves [‘ £2,384

.
Miscellaneous income ll £2,600

£117,359
Grant from Havering Council M

£100,000; 79 500

£-

£20,000
»~~7£40,000
£60,000 £80,000


http://www.healthwatchhavering.co.uk/our-activities

Our plans for 2018/2019

Strategic Objective: To continue to develop our
relationship with policy makers - Commissioning Groups -
Locality Development Group - CQC - Healthwatch England

» To ensure that we understand, influence and support the
engagement and consultation process for our residents

_GStrategic Objective: Supporting You to Have Your Say

To continue to support the Borough in developing a quality
feedback programme for residents who receive care
services

TE abe

» To continue our successful Enter and View programme,
building our knowledge and sharing residents’ experiences

Strategic Objective: To be part of network of health and
social care professional to promote and champion the value

Strategic Objective: Making a Difference Together

of residents’ involvement

» To be an active participant in the Provider Alliance -
shaping and supporting new service models in the interests
of service users

Extend our working with the Public Health team on
Tobacco Control and London Regional Tobacco Control
Network as part of our pledge to support their creating a
‘No Smoking’ environment, particulalry among young
people

Continue to develop our partnership working building on
the success with Care Point and Rainham Village Children’s
Centre to ensure the widest network of resident
engagement

Build on the findings of our current research into the
provision of services to people who have visual impairment

Continue to seek improvement in the provision of meals for
patients at Queen’s Hospital

Work with the NEL Commissioning Alliance and ACS to
improve the standard of care provided to people living
with dementia in their own homes



2¢ obed

Contact Us - Get In Touch

Healthwatch Havering is the operating name of

Havering Healthwatch Limited
A company limited by guarantee
Registered in England and Wales
No. 08416383

Registered Office:

Queen’s Court, 9 -17 Eastern Road,
Romford RM1 3NH

Telephone: 01708 303300

Email: enquiries@healthwatchhavering.co.uk

Website: www.healthwatchhavering.co.uk
Twitter feed: @HWHavering

The publishing and sharing of local Healthwatch annual reports each

year is set out in legislation and therefore a statutory requirement of

local Healthwatch organisations.

Our annual report will be publicly available on our website by 30
June 2018. We will also be sharing it with Healthwatch England, the
London Borough of Havering, CQC, NHS England, Havering Clinical
Commissioning Group, BHR Clinical Commissioning Group, Overview
and Scrutiny Committees, Health and Wellbeing Board, British Library

We confirm that we are using the Healthwatch Trademark, which
covers the logo and Healthwatch brand, when undertaking work on
our statutory activities as covered by the licence agreement (see
Appendix 3).

If you require this report in an alternative format please contact us
at the address above.

Copyright Havering Healthwatch Limited 2018



List of Appendices to the Annual Report
2017/18

1 Enter and View Reports - The involvement of lay persons and volunteers in the
carrying-on of the relevant section221 activities as set out in the Local Healthwatch
Organisations Directions 2013

cc abed

2 Compliance with General Data Protection Regulation (GDPR)

3 Use of Healthwatch copyright material



Appendix 1 Enter and View visits

The involvement of lay persons and volunteers in the carrying-on of the
relevant section221 activities as set out in the Local Healthwatch
Organisations Directions 2013

In addition to having one of the largest residential and care home sectors in Greater London, Havering has had the largest
number of GP practices in London rated by the CQC as Inadequate or Requiring Improvement, a major hospital Trust (BHRUT)
that is still emerging from Special Measures ( following a 2013 inspection that found it Inadequate), a community health
services Trust (NELFT) rated as Requiring Improvement, and a CCG that continues under immense financial pressure and
subject to Directions by NHS England. Moreover, the local health economy generally is under considerable strain because of
thf demands of urgent care needs, residential and domiciliary care needs and the imminent retirement of a number of GPs
wgrking single-handedly or in small partnerships.

Frgfn the beginning of Healthwatch, we have taken the view that a robust programme of Enter and View visits was the best way that we could
ensure that we examined on the ground how patients’ and residents’ needs were being met.

To that end, we identify premises that should be visited through a monthly meeting of staff and volunteers at which the programme is
managed, visits arranged and the findings of recent visits reviewed. In 2017/18, we carried out 27 visits (with a small number of premises
visited more than once). The full list appears below.

Our visiting teams were generally made welcome and managers and proprietors were very co-operative in facilitating the visits. The team
members were made to feel welcome by staff, residents/patients and their relatives and friends alike.

Few major problems were identified and mentioned in our teams’ reports of their visits. Where we did make recommendations, we have been,
or will be, following up to see what effect they have had.

All reports of our visits have been published on our website www.healthwatchhavering.co.uk/enter-and-view-visits and shared with the home,
GPs or hospital, the Care Quality Commission, the Clinical Commissioning Group, Havering Council and other relevant agencies. Owing to the
thorough nature of pre-publication checks, not all of the reports had been published at the date this report was prepared.



http://www.healthwatchhavering.co.uk/enter-and-view-visits

The powers of Healthwatch to carry out Enter and View visits are set out in legislation and all but one of these visits were carried out in
exercise of them. On that one occasion however, noted in the table that follows, the visit was carried out at the invitation of the
establishment’s owners/managers and there was no need for the exercise of our statutory powers; but that has not affected how we have
reported on such visits.

We did not find it necessary to make recommendations to Healthwatch England on special reviews etc.

Date of visit

2017
29 March and

23-#ay
QD
«Q

@
llg\_.Pr'il

18 April

19 April

19 May

Establishment visited

Name

Type

Barleycroft (fourth visit) Residential Care

Fountains Care Centre

Goodmayes Hospital:
Ogura Ward

Romford Nursing Care
Centre

Ingrebourne Medical
Centre

Home

Residential Care
Home

Mental Health In-
Patient Ward

Nursing Home

GP Practice

Reasons for visit

To observe the home in operation following various expressions of concern and five consecutive
inspections by the CQC resulting in "Requires Improvement” ratings

To observe the home in operation

To observe the ward in operation

To observe the home in operation following various expressions of concern

To observe the practice in operation following an Enter & View visit to a neighbouring practice



Date of visit

2017

1 June

21 June

4 July

9¢ obed

10 July

20 July

24 July

31 July

Establishment visited

Name

Dr Joseph (Collier
Row)

Ashling House

Hillside

New Medical Centre

Dr K Subramaniam

Dr Chowdhury (Oak
Lodge)

Park Lane Residential
Care

Type

GP Practice

Residential Care

Holme

Residential Care
Home

GP Practice

GP Practice

GP Practice

Prospective
Residential Care
Home

Reasons for visit

To observe the practice in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe the home in operation

To observe the home in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe the practice in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe the practice in operation following expressions of concern

To observe the practice in operation following a CQC inspection result of Inadequate, and the
practice being placed in special measures

The prospective proprietors of a new home invited a Healthwatch team to visit and view in
advance of their arranging for the premises to be converted to a care home.

THE REPORT OF THIS VISIT HAS NOT BEEN PUBLISHED.



Date of visit
2017

12 September

22 September

4 October (Unannounced)
and 5 October
(Announced)

T
Q

28¥%Dctober
D

w
21\l\iovember

11 December
13 December

14 December

Establishment visited

Name

Heatherbrook

Alton House

Queen’s Hospital,
Romford: Mealtimes
(second visit)

Berwick Surgery

Queen's Hospital,
Romford: Public Areas

Mawney Medical
Centre

Spring Farm Surgery

Meadowbanks

Type

Residential Care
Home

Residential Care
Home

Acute District
General Hospital

GP Practice

Acute District
General Hospital

GP Practice

GP Practice

Residential Care
Home

Reasons for visit

To observe the home in operation

To observe the home in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To follow up a visit in October 2016 to observe the meals service and o assess how far the
recommendations then made have been implemented

To observe the practice in operation following a CQC inspection result of Inadequate

To observe the cleanliness and "patient-friendliness” of the pubic areas (entrance, corridors,
stairways etc) of the hospital

To observe the practice in operation

To observe the practice in operation following a CQC inspection result of Inadequate

To observe the home in operation



Date of visit
2018

12 January

16 January

16 January

18 fnnuary
Q
«Q

9]
3(ﬁanuar‘y
(Announced) and 9

March
(Unannounced)

7 February

13 March

Establishment visited

Name

Cecil Avenue
Surgery

Chase Cross Medical
Centre

Cranham Court

Romford Grange
Care Home

Queen’s Hospital,

Romford: A&E
Department

Ladyville Lodge

Hornchurch Nursing
Centre

Type

GP Practice

GP Practice

Nursing Home

Residential
Care Home

Acute District

General
Hospital

Residential
Care Home

Nursing Home

Reasons for visit

To observe the practice in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe the practice in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe the home in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe the home in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe A&E in operation at a fime of "winter pressures” and following implementation of
accommodation changes within the building occupied by the department

To observe the home in operation following a CQC inspection result of Requires Improvement

To observe the home in operation



Although the GDPR is not coming into force until May 2018, after the period covered by this Annual Report,
in common with other Healthwatch organisations we began preparing for the changes during 2017/18.

Among other steps, we procured new IT hardware and software to provide more robust and secure data

collection and storage. Our original IT infrastructure was by then four or more years old and, although there

was no reason to suppose it was insecure, it was considered an appropriate time to arrange for upgrades.

Software upgrades are applied as and when they become available and known vulnerabilities are addressed,
though for much of that we are reliant upon external providers of services such as the website, email

sgstem and antivirus programs.

Data storage - both electronic and on paper - is being reviewed.

Policy changes required as a result of GDPR will be addressed in our Annual Report for 2018/19.

The cost of preparing for GDPR in 2017/18 was £2,790.



Havering Healthwatch Limited has a licence agreement with Healthwatch England governing use of the
Healthwatch copyright material, the logo and trademark.

The Healthwatch logo is used widely for Healthwatch Havering activity. It is used on:

The Healthwatch Havering website, Twitter account and YouTube and Vimeo accounts
This Annual Report

Publications such as reports of public consultation events and Enter & View visits

® 0 ®be s

Reports to official bodies, such as the Health & Wellbeing Board and Overview & Scrutiny Committees

Official stationery, including letterheads and business cards

Members’ identity cards

e Newspaper advertisements and flyers for events



_ Agenda Item 6
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Draft Health Improvement Report (2018)

Board Lead: Mark Ansell, Acting Director of Public Health

Report Author and contact details: Elaine Greenway, Consultant in Public Health
elaine.greenway@havering.gov.uk

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

DX Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

X Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

X] Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

X Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

The attached draft report is an illustration of health improvement activities
undertaken by the Public Health Service in collaboration with other Council services
and in partnership with a range of organisations. The report primarily focuses on the
eighteen month period to August 2018.

It is being presented to the Board at this time, as it may assist in discussions
regarding the approach/priorities for the new strategy.

The style of the presentation echoes that of the most recent health protection report,
which was well received by the Board.

Page 41



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

The Board is asked to
- consider the report and comment

- advise whether a similar report on health improvement would be useful in the
future

REPORT DETAIL

Health improvement utilises the majority of the Public Health Service resource®. The
report sets out the health improvement activity under three headings:

e putting health and wellbeing into all policy, systems and partnerships

e commissioning health improvement services

e nudging residents towards healthier choices

Eighteen separate programmes of work are summarised; each contains a sketch
which loosely illustrates how the different programmes are interlinked with each
other, with other services, and with Council public health priorities.

Following are examples of some of the achievements from the past eighteen months
which are explained further in the report:

e Public Health and Planning worked together on health impact assessment of the
Local Plan. This showed that it is possible to take a very practical approach to
health in all policies, and this led to further interest in assessing other strategies
and policies for their impact on health

e Health champions delivered a range of health improvement activities and
attended over 100 events, raising awareness about priority health issues,
including mental health, cancer, physical activity, smoking, alcohol and healthy
eating — trainee GPs worked with health champions on an outreach project in
Romford town centre

e A suicide prevention approach across BHR commenced, led by LBH public
health

e The health and wellbeing in schools service has supported schools to achieve
Healthy Schools London awards, and has delivered training to school staff on a

! Approximately 9fte officer time is directed on health improvement activity, and the remaining 8fte
split between health protection and service improvement.

Page 42



&¢ Havering

s LONDON BOROUGH
range of health and wellbeing topics. The service is supporting schools to
prepare for new curriculum content on Sex and Relationship education.

e Havering was one of just six London boroughs to participate in Healthy Early
Years London pilot, with eight awards achieved during the pilot phase

e In partnership with Early Help and NELFT, starting solid foods workshops
designed to help parents to confidently wean babies onto solid foods; sessions
commenced in January

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

None

‘ BACKGROUND PAPERS ‘

None

Page 43



This page is intentionally left blank



Public Health Service
Health Improvement
Draft Report

o Yoss \if
ategies acyoss (4
9 cav ‘e‘ g%‘f
ovey a\\

Health i partnerc Service
Improvement Improvement

Needs te whether
; i assessment Eva\ua il
Healbhier choices £l :fen ngss ’%:c ieve

o P omes
Commmiom?:g health
improvement seyvices A !

Disease prevalence

[/
Hea\t\rgngal:ura\ ‘ : Er@ Ao 5 )'( %

High edvcation aspiration buitb environments for children

and achievemen y . lz t give
orking to \th Assist
create a healbhy Hﬁ:&b{cﬁﬁrf‘c i :erv.‘c‘e“/ ml:hway

> > A.,,:- wcl:—er \aLC‘GOV Elll .i
employees and redesign
y - uea\eh ath ek QQGQ

GQO Service provision

S £ vporak
TS e

Screening
: Well paid
i Webgp
secwye
employment
Clear, advice abovk
\ifestyle Lh‘e\?ge
makjng vse of \ocal
W,‘ asceks gi‘erme: an enviyonmental
seld help aide eaith TImmunisabion
Enc nwaqu: children's sebtings
Safe and and schools to be healthy y\a ces Uohog

G a2k sport heck sbark e Lradng conkamnated inated throvgh
by, - o He'a\ *ral:eé:wn Fodom Healbh

Emerge
pevaency

Promoting hea\t\ny choices b
anning

acting bo reduce o nNe"s & monit 3
Tran: ;‘(‘Dz?‘tt\“an of § “ ‘ A M _’ﬁh With ?B(knerc.

onhe: ones 5 05 » " :
e ; i S = [V voveine =

Health
Proiection

August 2018

1
Page 45



Contents

Introduction by the Director of Public Health ...........coe et reeeee e e s s e s e e ennes s s s s s e s e e e nnnnssnnes 3
Section 1: Putting health and wellbeing into all policy, systems and partnerships ......ccccccceveeeeeceerrirereeccccceerneeennnn. 4
1. Health impact assessment of the LOCAl PlaN...........oioiiii ittt ete e e e ree e e e b e e s enre e e s e nreas 4
2. HEAITN N Al POLICIES «..eeieeieeeee ettt ettt ettt e st e e bt e e st e e s bt e e sabe e s beeesnseesabeeesabeesabeesaneeesareeeaneeenns 5
3. Mental health anNd WEIDEING ......ooo i e e e e e st e e s e tb e e e e sataeeesabaeeeessseeesnsaeeaan 6
4. Mental Health Training and Support for Havering SChOOIS ........uviiiiiiieeceecce e 7
5. Health and wellbeing in SCHOO0IS SEIVICE ......cciiiiiiiiceiee et e e e s et e e e e eata e e e easaeeeesaaeeesnsaneaan 8
6. Health and wellbeing in @arly Years SETLINGS ......uviiiii i e e e e e e e e e e e e nnraeeee s 9
I YUY ToiTe [l T =LV7 =T ) o o SR 10
8. Infant feeding: starting SOlid fOOUS ......uiiiiiiiiiie e e e e e e e s be e e e s abe e e e s nres 11
S B | oo [V | 1 Y PSPPSR 12
10. Empowering Parents Empowering COMMUNITIES ......uuuuui s 13
11. [ Tor= 1 1A =T @ Y1 To [T o W o [T ot PSR 14
Section 2: Commissioning health improvement Services .............cccoe i e e e 15
12. INHS HEAITH CRECKS ...ttt ettt e sttt e st esbe e e sabeesabeeesabeesabeeessbeesabeeesaseenanes 15
13. SEXUAI HEAITN ..ttt ettt ettt e sa e st e s bt e e sa bt e s bt e e s abe e s beeesabeesabeeebeeesabeeeaneeea 17
14. (D] UF-2ToTe IF-] [ole] Yol I o F=1 s T Yo 1V ot o [N 18
15. Health visiting and SChOOI NUISING SEIVICES ......cciiiiiiii ettt ree e e etee e e e sate e e e e eate e e e e nbaeeeenees 19
Section 3: Nudging residents towards healthier choices.................oooiiii e 20
16. TODbACCO NArmM FEAUCTION ..ot e st sbt e s e s b e e s b e e neeesareesareeesmreesaneean 21
17. [ L=E YL o ol - o o 1o o 13PTSR 23
18. Vo g o] Lol I 11 oY o = PSR 24
Appendix of health improvement promotions/campaigns ...............cccouieiriiiieiiiiie ittt cre b e naeas 25

2
Page 46



Introduction by the Director of Public Health

Local authorities have led action to improve health since the Victorian period when their predecessors
worked to provide residents with clean water and sanitation. As shown in the figure below, our living and
working conditions, whether it be access to good education and employment opportunities, decent
housing, a high quality built and natural environment and a community with strong social capital continue
to be the major determinants of our health and wellbeing.

One could argue then that the
primary function of many Council
services has long been to improve
health. Nonetheless, in 2013,
Council’s took on additional
responsibilities to improve health and
tackle health inequalities within the
borough and gained a specialist
Agriculture Public Health Service. This report

and food

production

focuses on joint work between the

Age, sex, and Public Health Service, other Council
constitutional

factors services and other partners across

the borough to improve health.!
Figure 1: The Social Model of Health (Dahlgren & Whitehead, 1991)

It is well understood that many public health and wellbeing issues are hugely complex. There is rarely a
single ‘silver bullet’ solution. More often, a concerted response is required on the part of many
stakeholders for a prolonged period. For example, the Council’s Obesity Prevention Strategy sets out how

the Council can contribute to national and international action to slow and eventually reverse the rise in
childhood obesity.

For simplicity’s sake, the particular contribution of the Council’s Public Health Service and our partners to
improve the health of local residents has been described in terms of three interlinked workstreams: -

e putting health and wellbeing into all policy, systems and partnerships

e commissioning health improvement services

e nudging residents towards healthier choices

Hopefully, it will provide the reader with an idea of our general approach to health improvement, an
overview what has been achieved from January 2017 to March 2018 and our plans for the coming year.

Mark Ansell, Acting Director of Public Health

! Health improvement is one of the three core functions of public health - the others being health protection and healthcare
public health. An annual health protection report summarises activity in this area.

3
Page 47



https://www.havering.gov.uk/download/downloads/id/957/preventing_of_obesity_strategy.pdf
https://www.havering.gov.uk/downloads/20073/public_health
https://www.google.co.uk/url?sa=i&rct=j&q=&esrc=s&source=images&cd=&cad=rja&uact=8&ved=2ahUKEwiC3-mRp4XdAhUS3xoKHUcODHwQjRx6BAgBEAU&url=https://www.researchgate.net/figure/The-main-influences-on-health-according-to-Dahlgren-and-Whitehead_fig1_288430910&psig=AOvVaw2WYHPDBC7fvHLQ1BZthl0r&ust=1535186936443621

Section 1: Putting health and wellbeing into all policy, systems and partnerships
Embedding health and wellbeing into policy and systems is a collaborative approach to meeting the greatest health
challenges of today; those of non-communicable diseases (such as diabetes), health inequities and inequalities, and
increasing health and social care costs. It means routinely considering the impact of decision-making on health and
wellbeing and influencing the determinants of health (as per figure 1 above).

Partnership working is key to maximising good health and addressing health inequalities. Local authorities are
experienced in partnership working, which has meant that the Havering Public Health Service benefited both from
established relationships, and easily established partnerships with other services and external partners.

1.  Health impact assessment of the Local Plan

Background

Built and

natural

environ- health and wellbeing. The environment can have

Physical ment
and mental

Natural and built environments play a major role in

Safe positive effects on both established and incoming
environ-

health and communities which can last for generations. Good
wellbeing

ment
planning can result in health benefits arising from, for

Slzalnn example, less opportunity for criminal behaviour,

Wider all stronger community cohesion, more physical activity.

L Poicie ovesy
education prevention

Key facts

employment
e The Local Plan for Havering guides future growth and

Tobacco Workplace development in the borough.
harm health and . .
reduction wellbelng e A health impact assessment was undertaken during

development of the draft Local Plan and again, when

changes were made following consultation.

Recent actions

*  Public Health and Planning worked together to conduct a prospective desktop health impact assessment of the
Local Plan. This was an iterative process conducted alongside development of the draft Local Plan.

* A Health Impact Assessment Report was produced that explained the steps undertaken, and the contribution
that the health impact assessment process had made

* Following consultation feedback, the Local Plan was re-assessed to ensure the potential impacts of the changes
proposed through the consultation exercise were taken into consideration for their positive or negative impacts
and any mitigating factors

Main successes/outcomes

* Local Plan will require developers to undertake health impact assessments on all major developments

* This demonstrated a very practical approach to health in all policies, and led to further interest in assessing other
strategies and policies for their impact on health, leading to broader programme of work (2. below)

Plans for 18-19
* In preparation for implementation of the Local Plan, Public Health is working with planning colleagues to embed
health impact processes into planning procedures

®  Public Health will support teams and services to undertake in-depth health impact assessments on large-scale
major building developments

Pagé 48



2. Health in all Policies

Background
Health in All Policies means systematically considering

the implications of decisions for likely impact on health Giving every
. o hild the best
and wellbeing. The approach attempts to maximise e
. . . o . . . veryone to
potential for improving health, minimise any negative maximise Strengthen
. . ) their the role and
impacts on health, and reduce health inequalities. capabilities impact of il
and have health
. control over prevention
Recent actions their lives
* This phase of Health in All Policies was a progression Healt!\ "
. all policies
from health impact assessment of the Local Plan,
. . . . Create and
agreed by Council Senior Leadership Team, with a Create fair develop
K employment healthy and
pilot that commenced summer 2018 and good Sustaixab,e
+  Public Health and the Council’s equalities lead, with s el places and
communities
advice from the Legal Team, designed a combined rEnslu:]e
. . - ealthy
equality and health impact assessment form. This fis standard of

living for all

used as a first stage in the process; report authors re-

evaluate their initiatives and consider where further

health and wellbeing gains might be made. The

form helps to identify any initiatives that have

Health Socio- Clinical care Build substantial impact, which will then become the subject
behaviours economic 20% environment of a full health impact assessment.
30% factors 10% . . .
0 * At the same time as the combined equality and
40%
Smoking 10% Education Access to care | Environmental health impact assessment was developed, Public
10% 10% quality Health ked with the C iID | T
e ealth worked with the Council Development Team to
Diet/exercise Employment | Quality of care Built health impact assess the economic strategy
10% 10% 10% environment
5%
Alcohol use 5% Income
10% Main successes/outcomes
Hal A Family/social »  Design an approach to embedding health in all
health 5% support o i ) ) o o
5% policies, in partnership with equalities lead; equalities
Community and health impact assessment form developed
Safet . .
5%y * Health impact assessment of the economic strategy
undertaken

Figure 2: Relative contribution of the determinants of health®

Plans for 18-19

* Pilot and evaluate the extent to which the equalities and health impact assessment form is facilitating the health
in all policies approach

*  Public health to deliver information and training sessions about health in all policies to Council services, and
support teams to undertake full health impact assessments of other major areas of work identified

% LGA Health in all policies: a manual for local government
? https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/health-all-policies-manua-ff0.pdf

Paée 49


https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/health-all-policies-manua-ff0.pdf

Mental health and wellbeing

Background
Taking care of mental health is just as

Healthy important as looking after physical health.
schools

The Havering multi-disciplinary Mental

Physical Health Partnership Board, chaired by Adult
health . .
(obesity Suicide Social Care, oversees the approach to mental
. prevention .. . . :

long term health provision and promotion in Havering,

conditions) Mental .
health and reports to the Health and Wellbeing

promotion

Board. Children’s mental health is also a
local priority (see later pages)

Workplace Health Key facts
nea SElE s * One in four adults will be affect by a

mental health problem in their lifetime

* There has been an acceptance nationally

that mental health needs to be given parity

of esteem with physical health

Recent actions
Public Health has both lead and supported partnerships

Initially chairing the Mental Health Promotion Subgroup for the MH Partnership Board to promote good mental
health, and subsequently handing over to the voluntary sector to chair. The Subgroup organises promotional
events to coincide with Mental Health Awareness Week, which is supported by health champions

Chairing the Suicide Prevention Steering Group for Havering, Barking & Dagenham, and Redbridge

Chairing the Havering Children and Young People Mental Health Transformation Group which provides a forum
for cross-sector and cross-agency working to promote good practice and communication across the system. It
reports to the BHR CAMHS Transformation Strategic Partnership Group

Contributed to the Adult Social Care®-led autism strategy in respect of achieving improved health outcomes for
people with autism, with a focus on accessibility to mainstream health and social care services strategy.
Contributed to the dementia strategy.

Main successes/outcomes

Well attended mental health awareness week promotional events

Health promotion throughout the year, including article in Living (Feb 18), promoting good mental health and
availability of Talking Therapies service

Health champions trained in mental health awareness

Mental health included in workplace health programme of work

Plans for 18-19

Priority focus on the issue of suicide prevention (see later page)

Continue to support partners in promoting good mental health mental health, including through continued
recruitment and training of health champions and through workplace health programme (separate pages), and
supporting priority workstreams such as those on autism and dementia

“ltis recognised that autism is not a mental health problem, although is associated with higher risk of mental ill-health

Pagef 50



4.  Mental Health Training and Support for Havering Schools

Background
Mental health training and support for
Training for schools is delivered by many different
school staff . . . . .
provider organisations, and funding of this
- comes from disparate sources and is
Specialist Everyday . . . .
mental health class-based available for varying periods. It is closely
(Sci\,(,',ﬁ;) practice linked to the Health and Wellbeing in

Schools Service (see later page).

Mental Health
Training and

sus’::rr,gglzor The Havering Mental Health Transformation
Implementation Group has members from

Awareness-
raising and Resilience-

tr:g‘:gst?r building services. To ensure equitable awareness of,
and access to, training and support
opportunities, members identified a need to

across council, NHS and voluntary sector

Counselling
services produce a resource for schools that

presents this in a concise, coherent format.

The resulting mental health training and

support for Havering schools resource was

published on the Havering Family Services Hub Professionals Gateway in July 2018.

Recent actions

* Astandardised template was developed by Public Health which mental health training and support providers
completed.

* This was collated and approved by the group before being published online in a location accessible to all school
staff. As a result of presentations by members of the group to each other, all members have a good
understanding of their collective offer and are able to signpost to each other’s training as appropriate.

* The resource will be updated on a termly basis going forwards so that it remains up-to-date and relevant.

* Theresource is promoted to schools via existing networks, meetings and training sessions.

Main successes/outcomes

* A complex mix of training provision and funding has been simplified into a ‘one-stop’ overview.

e Providers contributing to the resource have been asked to provide a seminar at Havering’s Safeguarding Week to
help bring the resource to life.

Plans for 18-19

* Headteachers and other senior leaders are joining the Mental Health Transformation Implementation group
from September 2018 which will enable greater input from schools to ensure that the mental health training and
support for Havering schools resource is relevant and user-friendly.

* Schools’ engagement with the training and support on offer is being tracked by the providers. This will enable
targeted communication and promotion to those schools where take-up is low

7
Page 51


https://familyserviceshub.havering.gov.uk/kb5/havering/directory/advice.page?id=IX0XXtDG3zU
https://familyserviceshub.havering.gov.uk/kb5/havering/directory/advice.page?id=IX0XXtDG3zU

Health and wellbeing in schools service

Mental
health and

Background
School settings have a huge influence on a child’s

emotional
wellbeing

future health outcomes, and evidence is beginning

Reducing
substance Oral health

misuse education attainment®. The Council has

to emerge that is linking health and wellbeing with

established relationships with schools in the

borough, and Public Health works with colleagues
Health &

wellbeing
in schools

and teams across the Council to help schools to

Obesity create positive and healthy environments.

prevention

Key facts

Havering’s Health and Wellbeing in Schools
Tobacco Workplace

harm health and
reduction wellbeing

Service:
e s funded by Public Health, Havering Catering
Services and Havering Sports Collective

e as atraded service, offers additional support to

schools to achieve Healthy Schools London awards, and delivers training for school staff on a range of health and
wellbeing topics

e promotes a whole school approach to mental health and emotional wellbeing, healthy eating, physical activity
and other PSHE topics

Recent actions

e Ongoing training and support have been provided with additional courses introduced following work with
stakeholders and school staff to identify further needs

* Termly network meetings have been established, enabling sharing of best practice and promoting support and
services for all schools in Havering

Main successes/outcomes

e Current Healthy Schools London awards: 19 bronze, 15 silver, 8 gold

* 15 schools bought into the service during 2017/18

+  Training courses developed and delivered®: Promoting Positive Mental Health in the Classroom (Nov 17 & Mar
18)

*  Support to schools to prepare for new curriculum content on Sex and Relationships Education, with training on
Policy into Practice delivered Feb 18

Plans for 18-19

* Continue to provide an offer to schools that supports wider action on reducing obesity, improving sexual health

* Continuing to encourage schools to buy into the service and work towards Healthy Schools London awards

* Continuing to develop the training offer, particularly around relationships and sex education in the lead up to
this becoming mandatory in the curriculum from September 2020.

> http://www.healthyschools.london.gov.uk/healthy-schools-london-evaluation
® For both training sessions, 100% of attendees rated the training as useful in their course evaluations

Page8 52



http://www.healthyschools.london.gov.uk/healthy-schools-london-evaluation

6. Health and wellbeing in early years settings

Healthy
eating,
breastfeeding
, starting solid
food

Parenting and
home
learning

Oral health

Physical
activity
Infection
control and
Immunisation

Speech,
language,
communicati
on

Early
cognitive
development

Support for
children with
SEN

Background

Ensuring all children have the best start in life and
ensuring school readiness is one of the most
important factors in improving the health and
wellbeing of future generations. Building on the
success of Healthy Schools London, the Healthy
Early Years London Programme was introduced as a
pilot programme.’

Background

e An awards pathway that encourages early years
settings to evaluate their current practice and to
steadily improve and progress through progressive
awards; from First Steps, through to Bronze, Silver
and Gold

e A central feature of the programme is for
participating settings to work in partnership with

parents to support the physical, emotional and social health and development of the children in their care. The

pilot phase has been completed, and the full London programme will be launched in September 2018

Recent actions

* Havering was among the first cohort of boroughs to participate in the Healthy Early Years London pilot project,

which ran June-November 2017. As one of the six boroughs from the pilot, the local project was delivered

through a partnership between the Public Health Service and Learning and Achievement teams.

*  Twelve early years settings were invited to join the local pilot project

Main successes/outcomes

* Three Havering settings achieved their first steps award during the pilot project

* Three Havering settings achieved their bronze award during the pilot project

* Two Havering settings went on beyond the pilot phase to achieve their silver award

* Participating in the pilot phase has helped to generate additional interest locally in participating in the

programme

Plans for 18-19

Public Health Service and Learning and Achievement teams will be

e continuing a phased roll-out of the programme

e delivering introductory training sessions to support settings in South Hornchurch to join the programme

* continuing to support first cohort of settings to achieve awards

7 Better Health for All Londoners (Aug 2017) (consultation on the London Equalities Strategy)

Paae 53



Suicide prevention

Background
During 2013-15 there were 47 suicides in Havering
which is lower (better) than rates for London and

e England. Despite Havering being in this better

Educational care and position, it is recognised that every suicide has
outcomes emergency L B N
services devastating impact on families and communities.

It has been estimated that for every life lost to
Suicide suicide, between six and sixty people can be
prevention directly affected. In terms of the financial costs to
Offender . . . .
health society, it has been estimated that the economic
cost of each death by suicide of someone of

working age is estimated to be £1.67 million.

Workplace Substance
health misuse Key facts

Suicides are not inevitable and many are

preventable; concerted action across a broad

range of factors must happen in order to make a difference and reduce numbers of suicide.

Recent actions

A multi-agency BHR steering group was set up in 2017, chaired by LBH Director of Public Health and vice chair
BHR CCG mental health clinical lead, and responsible for developing a strategy and ensuring wide engagement.
The steering group held a stakeholder workshop, attended by over 100 individuals who represented a wide
range of organisations, including key stakeholders such as BHRUT, Transport Police, Safeguarding Boards, Job
Centre, voluntary sector, etc. The workshop made a significant contribution to finalising the strategy and
developing the actions.

Main successes/outcomes

A BHR-wide strategy developed, jointly led/delivered by LBH, LBBD, LBR, BHR CCG, and NELFT

It was agreed that governance be to all three Health and Wellbeing Boards, through the local mental health
partnership boards/committees

Some early achievements include facilitating suicide prevention training for a range of agencies across BHR?, and
supporting national awareness events such as “Small Talk Saves Lives”

Plans for 18-19
Implement the high level priority actions set out in the strategy across all three boroughs:

Learning lessons from suicides and attempted suicides and putting in place measures that reduce the likelihood
of such circumstances reoccurring

Workforce training®

Signposting people who are bereaved by suicide to appropriate support

Strengthening support available to people in crisis and at immediate risk of suicide

Review the care of patients who self harm

Ensuring effective risk assessment is incorporated into routine care by GPs

8 Training funded by Tower Hamlets Community Education Provider Network
° Havering Safeguarding is including the topic of suicide prevention in the 2018 multi-agency safeguarding event

10
Page 54



8. Infant feeding: starting solid foods
Background
Reducing This is one workstream from a wider programme
Tzl of work from the obesity prevention strategy, and
impact on
A&E which is being led by the Havering Infant Feeding
Steering Group.
Breastfeedin attllr;ff?rrrint
g promotion and Key facts
ds rt .
SRS Starting development * The World Health Organization recommends

solid

that babies are exclusively breastfed for the first 6
foods

months of life. From 6 months, once infants
show signs of being developmentally ready, solid
foods can be gradually introduced

Oral health * Baby-led weaning with finger foods

promotion

Obesity
prevention

encourages babies to be exposed to lots of
different flavours and textures, learn where their

mouth is and how to self-feed and take control of

their own appetite.

* There are competing and confusing messages for parents, and health visitors and early years practitioners are
frequently asked about solid foods; when to start introducing them, what to introduce first, what to avoid, what
to do if baby chokes and so on

Recent actions

e Starting Solid Foods workshop session content was developed by Public Health, Early Help and NELFT

* Health visitors and early years practitioners invited families to the sessions, including via routine checks, health
clinics, and the Infant Feeding Café at Collier Row Children’s Centre

* A monthly session for 12-15 families began in January 2018 at Collier Row Children’s Centre, co-delivered by a
health visitors and early years practitioner

Main successes/outcomes

* Three Starting Solid Food workshop sessions were held between Jan 17 — March 18, with between 12-15 families
attending each session

e Pre-and post- session questionnaires are being completed by parents, and will be evaluated in 2018/19.

* Initial feedback has been positive e.g. “Fantastic and useful workshop that has given me needed knowledge and
understanding as well as increased confidence to give my baby appropriate and healthy meals”

* Akey success to date has been the partnership between LBH and NELFT — both are operating on low budgets
and capacity so this has been an efficient way of meeting needs despite financial challenge

Plans for 18-19

* Early Help and health visiting teams are currently looking at capacity to extend delivery of the workshop to other
children’s centres during 2018/19.

* Like Collier Row, St Kilda Children’s Centre hosts health clinics and an Infant Feeding Café so it’s likely this will be
the second centre to offer the workshop.

* A project will be explored to consider the feasibility of training volunteers to deliver family cooking sessions
across the borough, thus building on the Starting Solid Foods work

11
Page 55



9. Air quality

Background

The topic of air quality has been included in a
Health impact previous Health Protection Forum report. Itis
SSESSmEnt also included in this report, as is part of a broad
approach to health improvement.

. Healthy
Behaviour schools Key facts

S RIOSICITC Air pollution can damage lives with harmful
effects on human health, the economy and the
environment, and it

* isthe largest environmental risk to the
public’s health, contributing to cardiovascular

Health disease, lung cancer and respiratory diseases
champion

Workplace
ezl e * increases the chances of hospital admissions,

visits to emergency departments and respiratory

and cardiovascular symptoms which interfere

with everyday life, especially for people who are

already vulnerable.
» affects everyone, with a disproportionate impact on the young and old, the sick and the poor.
Changing behaviours and attitudes towards sustainable solutions are part of a broad societal response to reduce air
pollutant levels, which also includes providing infrastructure and green spaces that encourage walking and cycling as
well as increased use of public transport, low/zero emission vehicles, and traffic control

Recent actions

Havering Public Protection and Smarter Travel Services led this programme of work. Public Health provided support

to the Air Quality Working Group which delivered a wide range of actions, including

e Adoption of an Air Quality Action Plan 2018-2023 to reduce the impacts of poor air quality

e development of specially created character for local air quality improvement campaign (Miles the Mole), funded
in part by the Mayor’s Air Quality Fund

e schools programme, including development of the script for a film, the live performance in schools and
associated lesson plans

e awareness raising through the public health communications, and through the commissioned health champion
programme and healthy schools

e embedding consideration of air quality through the Local Plan health impact assessment (earlier page)

Main successes/outcomes

* Bythe end of 2017, 37 primary schools received the “Theatre in Education” bespoke air quality production,
featuring Miles the Mole, with lesson plans and school packs. 57 primary schools received the air quality
campaign packs (containing video, anti-idling banners, posters and lesson plans)

*  Miles the Mole campaign was shortlisted as one of four finalists in the National Air Quality Awards under the Air
Quality Communications Initiative of the Year category

Plans for 18-19
e Continue to support improvements in air quality through the air quality working group, and through health
impact assessment

12
Page 56



10. Empowering Parents Empowering Communities

Background
Resilient Empowering Parents, Empowering Communities (EPEC) is a
5
commsum = proven method of prevention and early intervention that

helps families achieve the best start in life for their

School Mental
readiness wellbeing children. Itis a low cost parenting programme combining
mpoweri

e, peer-led parenting groups with training, supervision and

emp"g""e"“ support provided by parenting specialists based in local

communitie services. South London and Maudsley NHS Foundation

Behaviour s (EPEC) , . - .
change Addressing Trust’s EPEC team has partnered with 15 organisations in

(positive inequalities
parenting)

England to establish local EPEC hubs. Havering successfully

e applied to develop a hub in the borough. Havering receives
esilient

families 18 months of support from the national team to set up an

EPEC hub. Havering’s commitment has been to host the
hub (early help/children’s centres), fund a coordinator for

18 months, provide admin support and finance non-pay costs such as parent group leader expenses and créche
facilities, and to recruit, train and supervise 16 EPEC parent group leaders and run 10 EPEC parent courses for up to
100 parents over a 12 month period.

Key facts

Expected outcomes include

* Peer supporters gain an accredited qualification thus improving access to employment.
* Increase uptake of the 2 year offer

* Increased child emotional and behaviour development

* Increased positive parenting behaviour, confidence and skills, and parent wellbeing

Recent actions

Three members of the early help team attended EPEC training while the recruitment of the EPEC hub coordinator
was taking place. This meant the programme recovered lost time as result of late implementation and is now
keeping pace with its milestones. A further advantage has been that wider training has created a larger resource to
support the project. The EPEC programme has been very well communicated and other stakeholders (health visiting
and maternity) are promoting the project to aid volunteer recruitment and course attendance.

Main successes/outcomes

e Hub co-ordinator recruited and attended 3 day hub familiarisation and training event

e 6 volunteer parent peer supporters recruited who will begin their training between July-October 2018

e Contributed/influenced development of the national programme design, including:
e Setting up a network team
e Investigating accreditation of the Havering-designed EPEC training course with AQA so that all parent peer
volunteers receive an accredited certificate of training.

Plans for 18-19

e Deliver three EPC courses September - December 2018 (from three children’s centres; Chippenham Road,
Hilldene and Ingrebourne. Further courses will be arranged for 2019.

e To agree the AQA accreditation with the EPEC national team

13
Page 57



11. Localities: Children’s Project
Background

The multiagency strategic group identified an
opportunity to work with children and their families
who were below statutory threshold but required a
multi-agency early intervention. The aim of the

Mental School
health attendance

project is to intervene early, thus preventing
escalation and need for higher level services.

Servi Localiities
. ervice _
'mpm\;e_ Children's
e Project Key facts
* The programme aims to work with 20-25 families
Resilient o Nov 17 - Sept 18 and is based on a PDSA™

aiE int til .
families AERETE improvement model.

Addressing
inequalities

* It was arranged that referrals would be made via
two schools in the locality: Hilldene Primary and

Drapers Academy (senior school). Processes were

established, including

(a) data sharing protocols, which included parental consent for referral. Part of the process meant that a key case
worker would be the link between the family and other disciplines, and who would develop a care plan in
consultation with parents. This approach was in response to parents and schools’ feedback that the established
process was confusing for parents and often took a long time to get a response, also that parents were have to
repeat “their story” again and again to different professionals.

(b) Parents completing an “Outcome Star” at the outset and again at the end of the intervention, so that change and
improvement could be evaluated.

Recent actions

17 families had been referred by the end of August 2018. Main areas of need are associated with health, finance,
housing, and behaviour. Each family has benefited from a programme of specifically-tailored interventions,
including parenting support, and support with finances, housing, employment and health and wellbeing.

Main successes/outcomes

* All agencies worked well together to establish processes, as well as learning lessons and overcoming barriers
related to ways of working, and organisational cultures

* Fewer families referred than anticipated —partly due to identifying suitable candidates from high number of
families with complex needs — and partly to establishing processes - and complexity of referral routes. One point
of learning has been to broaden referral routes (i.e. to include. health visitors and housing colleagues).

+  Considerable benefits and good outcomes among families engaged with project™

Plans for 18-19

* Ongoing evaluation (from the PDSA approach) suggests that the referral process could be simplified, and this is
currently in development

* The project is set to continue, incorporating changes to referral process as above

% plan do study act — which is an approach for achieving incremental improvement through a continuous cycles of appraisal and
learning, and small changes
! Details not included because of confidentiality

14
Page 58



Section 2: Commissioning health improvement services

Local authorities are responsible for providing a range of public health services including health visiting, sexual
health services, drug and alcohol treatment services, NHS health checks, and school nursing services. Over half of
Havering Council’s public health grant is spent on such health improvement services. Because of affordability, some
services that promote behaviour change, such as smoking cessation and health champion services receive a very
modest investment and rely, in the main, on partnership working to achieve health improvement outcomes.

12. NHS Health Checks

Health
champions

moking
cessation/
tobacco
harm
eductio

Earlier
intervention/
management

Healthy
weight

NHS
Health
checks

Increased
physical
activity

Mental/

physical
health

Dementia

Background

Local authorities are mandated to provide NHS
Health Checks free of charge to local residents.
The health check is a national risk assessment,
and awareness raising programme for those
aged 40 to 74 who have not previously been
diagnosed with a cardio vascular condition.

The check, which should be offered to eligible
individuals every five years, systematically
measures a range of risk factors that are known
to interact and affect risk of developing heart

oflongterm awareness
conditions Alcohol

harm stroke. The check takes about 20-30 minutes,

reduction

disease, type 2 diabetes, kidney disease and

and offers individuals the opportunity to

understand their personal CVD risk profile and

receive personalised advice about achieving a
healthier lifestyle. If appropriate, treatment or medication may also be prescribed. In Havering, local GPs are
commissioned to provide NHS health checks

Key facts
National evidence®® shows that:
e For every 30-40 NHS Health Checks, 1 person is found to have hypertension
e For every 80-200 NHS Health Checks, 1 person is diagnosed with type 2 diabetes
e Forevery 6-10 NHS Health Checks, 1 person is identified as being at high risk of CVD
The national indicator describing performance will be changing to a 5 year rolling performance figure

Recent actions

Under-performance of the Havering NHS Health Check programme in 2015-17 threatened the overall delivery of the
local five year programme. In 2017/18, a remedial improvement plan was put in place, through the Joint
Commissioning Unit’s new approach and focus on contract monitoring, Public Health engaging a peer educator for 7
hours per week to engage with primary care practitioners, and delivery of training to practice nurses. This achieved
the results set out below, although the two year historic under-performance in 2015-17 will continue to affect 5 year
rolling performance figures going forward.

Main successes/outcomes

'2 NHS Health Check Expert Scientific and Clinical Advisory Panel (2017) Emerging evidence on the NHS Health Check: findings and
recommendations

15
Page 59



e During the final quarter of 17/18, the highest number of NHS Health Check offers were recorded in any one
qguarter during the previous five year cycle, which brought the health check programme performance back on
track. Local GPs are thanked for all their efforts in responding to the Council’s request for support, particularly
whilst dealing with all of the other pressing priorities and pressures that the NHS is managing.

Plans for 18-19

* Refresh contract and issue to GP practices, to reflect the NHS Health Check Best Practice Guidance published Dec
2017.

*  Apply the lessons learned from the factors that led to historic underperformance (i.e. that health checks are a
minor aspect of GP business), and thus the need to maintain working relationships with GPs. Where competing
priorities for the Council’s Joint Commissioning Unit leads to insufficient resources being devoted to sustaining
relationships with GP practices, this will inevitably lead to a reduction in performance.

* NHS Health Check training to be provided to practice nurses and healthcare assistants in Oct 2018

* To distribute activity equally across the five year period; so sending invitations to 20% of the eligible population
each year. However, the historic under-performance 2015-17 and remedial action in 2017-18, will have a long
lasting impact on how Havering is described in achieving the new performance indicator.

16
Page 60



13. Sexual Health

Background

While sexual relationships are essentially private matters, good
Prevent un-
planned

DREEEEEE rates of teenage pregnancy, protecting vulnerable groups from

sexual health is important to individuals and society. Reducing

sexual abuse and exploitation, and improving diagnosis of HIV

Identify Reduce all have an impact on the quality of life for those affected.

sexual teenage . .
exploitation pregnancy Local Authorities are mandated to provide sexual health

Sexual
health

services. The local contract expires Sept 18. A re-procurement
has been undertaken with B&D and Redbridge.
Key facts

Reduce e Following a steady decline in teenage pregnancies, there

falznlail: t”';ffr:'_liﬁi"“ was a slight increase in 2016. Young parents and their children

more likely to experience poorer outcomes

e There are higher rates of abortion in Havering (22.5)

compared to England (17.2) and London (20.7). Approximately one-third of abortions among women aged under
25 are repeat abortions. Havering (31.7%) is higher than England (26.7%), similar to London (30.7%)."

e Havering has had very low uptake of long acting reversible contraception (LARC). LARC and emergency hormonal
contraception can help to reduce unplanned and unwanted pregnancy.

e People who are unaware that they are HIV positive are more likely to have poorer health outcomes (through
delayed treatment, and risk passing on infection). The HIV prevention contract expires in 2018. BHRUT is

I** which aims to reduce risk of HIV infection

participating in a national Prep tria

What has been done

e Public Health has worked with GPs and CCG to increase the number of GPs offering LARC. GPs have attended
training and established an inter-practice referral scheme

o As well as jointly commissioning a BHR integrated sexual health service, Havering (PH & JCU) will become the
lead authority for the three borough sexual health commissioning function.

e Havering is participating in a London-wide sexual health transformation programme which includes a sexual
health e-testing service, and an integrated sexual health tariff

e Havering is working with B&D to jointly commission an HIV prevention service when existing contracts expire.

e Havering contributes to the London wide HIV prevention programme “ Do IT London”

e Havering participate in the freely available self-sampling HIV testing service known as “test.hivself”-

Main successes/outcomes

e Increased access and choice for women wanting LARC

Plans for 18-19

e Increased focus on preventing teen pregnancy, inc C card training for staff at the Cocoon, and C-card (condoms)
accessible from the Cocoon

e Conclude integrated sexual health service tender, and award contract to commence 1 October 2018

e The development of a clinically led sexual health network

e E-service home testing kits available in clinic from June 2018

e Commence the LBH/LBBD HIV prevention tendering process

B PHE Sexual and reproductive health profiles (2017 data)
' Prep (Pre-exposure prophylaxis) trial is commissioned by NHS England for those at high risk of HIV infection

17
Page 61



14.

Drug and alcohol harm reduction
Background
People who misuse drugs and alcohol risk their own health
COR;;”Lenr;:ie (short and long term) and can negatively impact the health
° and wellbeing of their families and communities.
Healthier UL
e oy tacte
5‘::::::6 * A comprehensive multi-agency three year drug and
treatment alcohol harm reduction strategy (2016-19) was developed

and a detailed action plan agreed. The strategy focused on

Healthier
families three themes: preventing harm to individuals, preventing

harm to families, and preventing harm to the wider
Healthier

individuals community. The majority of actions were completed

during the first two years.
¢ Alcohol plays a significant part in almost half of all

violent assaults, more than half of domestic violence
incidents, marital/ relationship breakdown and road traffic accidences

Episodes of heavy drinking (binge drinking) contribute towards town centre crime and disorder

Alcohol features in around a quarter of serious case reviews of at risk children, while drugs are implicated in 20%
Use of drugs also fuels criminal behaviour associated with buying/selling substances.

Havering commissions substance misuse treatment services, which contributes to a wider prevention strategy
involving a range of other organisations including criminal justice partners, pharmacists ( needle exchange
programme), other health services (e.g. maternity, sexual health, GPs) as well as town centre management,
trading standards, Licensing, etc)

Recent actions

Many of the strategy actions completed. In addition Tier Four Assessment Panel transferred to provider

Main successes/outcomes

Strengthened partnership working around safeguarding and working with schools through the healthy schools
programme to prevent harm to children as a result of substance misuse (i.e. both as potential future users of
substances, and as a result of living in a family that is affected by substance of misuse).

Draft pathway for dual diagnosis (mental health and substance misuse) have been developed by WDP & NELFT
Waiting times for treatment now below the national average

People at high risk seen within 2 weeks

Testing for Hepatitis C above the national average

Plans for 18-19
Complete the current action plan, including

Set

Focus on actions that strengthen the partnership approach to substance misuse harm reduction, including
induction and ongoing training for staff of services

Initiate a drugs deaths review panel

Agree shared care protocols (for alcohol misuse) with GPs (protocols being considered by CCG Area Prescribing
Committee Sept 18)

Finalise dual diagnosis pathway (mental health / substance misuse)

up a multi-agency working group to refresh the strategy

18
Page 62



15.

Health visiting and school nursing services
Background

The Healthy Child Programme includes the Health

';2?,',:2," Visiting Service for children aged 0-5 and School

physical
e — activity and
development £l sl the health of children and young people and their

and school

readiness families. The Healthy Child programme is a

Nursing Service for 5-19 years. It aims to improve

universal programme available to all children and

aims to ensure that every child gets the good start

Screening and Hga:fgy that they need.

immunisations

Programme

Key facts

e Health visitors deliver a universal new birth visit,
Breastfeeding
promotion
and support

Substance

: 1 year health review and 2-2.5 year health review,
misuse

and targeted antenatal and 6-8 week health

Safeguarding reviews where a risk has been identified.

e School nurses deliver hearing and vision

screening for reception year, the national child
measurement programme in Reception and Year 6, primary and secondary school drop-in sessions, and health
promotion topics for children, young people and parents. A key role is to work with other services in the
borough to ensure appropriate signposting and referral.

o The contract for the healthy child programme is delivered by NELFT (until March 2020)

Recent actions

A multi-agency workshop was held with the aim of improving local services, learning from good practice
elsewhere, and ensuring that the contract provides the best outcomes for children. Over 70 attendees were
present, drawn from the healthy child programme service, Early Help Service, SEND, Education support, Public
Health England, commissioners from Havering CCG and Essex County Council.

Both the school nursing service and the health visiting have become an integral part of the children’s locality
project and are part of the multi-disciplinary team working with identified families.

The health visiting service is supporting the EPEC programme by discussing options for volunteering with parents
and signposting families to the parent support groups.

Main successes/outcomes

Lessons learned from the workshop are being applied to current health visitor and school nursing services.
Health Visiting work closely with children centre staff to provide infant feeding cafés.

Health Visiting has implemented the Ages and Stages development questionnaire at the 2 % year check and
onward referrals are made where develop delay is found.

Plans for 18-19
As part of the review of the services in preparation for re-procurement in 2020

Continue to learn from other commissioners, by holding further event(s) during 2018-19

Undertake a service user engagement work programme

Health visitor and school services continue to contribute to the Children’s Locality Project, the Healthy Schools
Programme, and the “Empowering Parents Empowering Communities” project (described elsewhere in this
report.

19
Page 63



Section 3: Nudging residents towards healthier choices

“Prevention, it is often said, is better than cure. If people didn’t smoke, drank less, had better diets and exercised

more, the burden of disease would be reduced. But what is the role of the state in persuading people to alter their

lifestyles?” *°
As a local government briefing says “The traditional approach dictates that in cases where something causes
serious harm, such as drug use, restricting choice or even an outright ban is appropriate. However, where it is
less clear cut, the argument goes, the state should leave it to individual choice. But this ignores the fact that
there is a variety of ways in between that behaviour can be influenced from encouraging and incentivising
people through to subtly guiding choice in a certain direction. This can include enticing people to take up
activities or using subliminal marketing. For example, stressing social norms can encourage people to change
behaviour because they want to be alike. Alternatively it can involve making an environment less conducive
to someone making an unhealthy choice. An example of this would be making salad a default option as a side
instead of chips or placing clear signs to steps rather than escalators.”

The above is known as behavioural change, influencing those lifestyle choices that have a direct and obvious impact
on health, such as diet and exercise, but also other socioeconomic determinants of health, such as education and

crime. The term “behaviour change” encapsulates a wide range of approaches, and there is a body of literature on
this concept. For the purposes of this report, behaviour change is being described in terms of nudges, hugs, shoves

and bans.
Nudges: making the healthier choice the easier/more attractive choice
o Hugs: rewarding a behaviour
o Shoves: tougher measures that restrict choice
o Bans: using legislation and enforcement to prevent choice

All of the health improvement initiatives described earlier in this report rely to some extent or other on changing
behaviours; whether it is through the substance misuse service rewarding compliance to a treatment regimen with a
leisure centre entry voucher, or through workplace health approaches that provides cycle purchase schemes. Below
are some examples of behaviour change elements that are part of the health improvement programmes described
elsewhere in this report.

Nudges Hugs Shoves Bans

Creation of built and natural
environments that nudge
people to achieve healthier
lifestyles

Policies and strategies that
consider impact on health
and incorporate health and
wellbeing into decision-
making

Workplace wellbeing
initiatives that aim to make
healthier choices the norm,
i.e. increasing physical
activity through lunchtime
walks

the commissioned drug and
alcohol substance misuse
service uses an incentive
scheme that builds a reward
that can be redeemed
against, for example, a
leisure centre/gym visit

The Health and Wellbeing in
Schools Service supports
schools to develop whole
school food policies which
restrict and channel choice
through implementation of
the Government school
food standards and robust
packed lunch policies

Cheap cigarettes are known
to be one of the factors that
both influence children to
start smoking and
encourage people to
continue smoking. Public
Health supports Trading
Standards colleagues in
raising awareness among
the public on how to report
sales of illicit tobacco (see
p21 re specialist tobacco
control education unit)

> Local Government Association Changing behaviours in public health: to nudge or to shove?

20
Page 64




The following three programmes of work rely almost completely on facilitating behaviour change. All three
incorporate some element of commissioned services with modest investments that are designed to support a
broader approach to health improvement.

16. Tobacco harm reduction

Background
e Smoking remains the leading cause of preventable illness
lnaren's
health and and premature death in England.16 The costs of treating
AeiEes and supporting those who are affected by tobacco smoke
BILohis impacts on health and social care, and on employers as a
Healthy alcohol
Schools harm result of workforce absenteeism. Some groups have

reduction

higher rates of smoking, including people with severe

Tobacco
harm

reduction

mental illhealth, and people in routine and manual jobs.

Key facts
Health Mental

inequalities e +  Exposure to second hand smoke has a serious impact
promotion

on health, particularly for children.

Health * lllicit cigarettes are more likely to cause house fires

champions and, because they are cheap, incentivise some groups to

continue smoking. Sales of illicit cigarettes drive criminal

activity and fund organised crime.

*  Switching to vaping is 95% safer than smoking.

Recent actions

Following decommissioning of the local universal stop smoking service in May 2016, a renewed refocus was placed

on stopping smoking in pregnancy, together with a broader approach to tobacco harm reduction:

*  Public Health and the Joint Commissioning Unit set up a targeted stop smoking service for pregnant women and
those living in the same household as a pregnant woman. Funded through Havering and Barking and Dagenham
public health grants, a BabyClear programme was implemented, which includes training all midwives to screen
all pregnant women for smoking using carbon monoxide monitoring, and provide stop smoking support from the
first midwife appointment.

*  Broader tobacco harm reduction actions have included:

* Joint working between Trading Standards and Public Health on awareness raising about harms of illicit
tobacco and how the public can report where such sales are taking place. A specialist tobacco control
education unit was sited in Romford for a day,'® with health champions supporting engagement with the
public

* amulti-agency event (June 18) attended by the national PHE lead, presented the evidence about vaping and
second-hand smoke. A wide range of partners agreed to take action to support tobacco harm reduction

* opting in to a London-wide online / telephone stop smoking support service (launched May 17)

» workplace wellbeing initiatives on tobacco harm reduction, with OneSource HR commencing a review of
smoking and vaping policies

* health promotion campaigns throughout the year, and broad internal and external communications

'8 https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health
 The universal face to face stop smoking service was decommissioned due to unaffordability
A visiting unit, comprising an expert in detection of illicit tobacco, and a detection dog

21
Page 65



https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health/smoking-and-tobacco-applying-all-our-health

Main successes/outcomes

Rates of smoking during pregnancy have fallen in Havering from above-England rates to below-England, with
particularly rapid improvements made over the past two years
A wide range of partners engaged and signed up to taking action to reduce harms caused by tobacco

Plans for 18-19

Tobacco harm reduction a health improvement to continue to be a priority for 2018-19

Support HR and workplace health leads, by completing revisions to workplace policy on smoking, taking into
account latest evidence on harm reduction and vaping

Work with schools, education and Healthy Schools programme to further reduce the numbers of children who
take up smoking in the first place, including building on the awareness raising event about illicit tobacco

Build on the successes of the specialist stop smoking service for pregnant women; working with BHRUT and CCG
to implement BabyClear Plus; a further and later intervention in ante-natal care

Public Health and Trading Standards collaboration on encouraging local vape shops to join the independent
trade association, which is an indication of quality, and will give a level of assuredness to health professionals
when talking to patients about switching to vaping

Public Health, Healthwatch and the health champion service will be working together to recruit health

champions from tenants of Queen’s Court (Healthwatch business premises), to promote the health benefits of
smoking cessation/switching to vaping

22
Page 66



17. Health champions

Background
Mental My Health Matters is a Havering initiative
health and where local people are trained to connect

emotional
Drug and wellbeing
alcohol Healthy to raise awareness of health and wellbeing

harm eating
reduction

with residents, employees and communities

and to prompt lifestyle changes. It is part of
a broad approach to health improvement
and complements approaches to reducing

P ch';sf;gns harms causes by tobacco, alcohol, diet and
awareness Obesity low levels of activity, as well as supporting
détiiﬂzn prevention workplace wellbeing and mental wellbeing

promotions.
T(;:‘?:rfo mglr:ﬁ?;g A very modest investment in the
reduction wellbeing programme achieves a wide reach, as

health champions are volunteers who
demonstrate a commitment to health
improvement and have a strong connection

with their community. These include
elected members, allied health professionals and health practitioners (such as healthcare assistants and dental
hygienists) and non-health professionals who either promote health in the workplace or the wider community,
Health champions complete accredited training, which includes training on behaviour change, and are key to
supporting local health improvement priorities, as well as broader national initiatives. They can be identified in the
workplace by their pin badges."

Recent actions

e 90 health champions were trained during 17-18; and 15 campaign volunteers engaged to support priority health
campaigns. The majority of health champions wear a badge in work settings which identify that they can be
approached on health improvement matters.

Main successes/outcomes

e 105 events were attended/supported by health champions, including awareness raising events on cancer,
mental health, physical activity, smoking, alcohol and healthy eating. 3,221 local people engaged with a health
champion during 17-18.

e Health champions worked in collaboration with other agencies, including for example a health centre, where
they promoted NHS Health Checks and signposted to physical activity opportunities, including leisure centres,
and with mental health services to promote mental health awareness week in Romford market (May 18)

e Trainee GPs worked with health champions to deliver an outreach project in Romford town centre

Plans for 18-19
More health champions will be recruited and trained to focus on the key lifestyle factors and issues that impact on
long-term health, and to reduce inequalities

Y The pin badges were recently redesigned following focus group feedback, followed by a competition to design a badge that
health champions would be more likely to wear.

23
Page 67



18. Workplace wellbeing

Background
Employment is a primary determinant of health®,
Healthy with good employment impacting both directly and
el indirectly on the individual, as well as their families
Drugand Mental and communities.
alcohol harm health and
reduction wellbeing
Key facts

* There are good business reasons for improving

Dozl workplace wellbeing: healthier, active and engaged

wellbeing
Health Obesity employees are more productive, have lower levels
champions prevention

of sickness absence and presenteeism*
* A high number of Council employees also live in
the borough, giving the opportunity for workplace

Tobacco

harm Healthier wellbeing benefits to also reach into the local

lucti communities .
reduction communlty

Recent actions

. The Council is working towards London
Healthy Workplace Charter accreditation of Excellence, which builds on existing wellbeing initiatives such as
Havering Staff Games, and sport and physical activity opportunities, as well as the occupational health
arrangements already in place

* A Council Workplace Wellbeing Steering Group formed, chaired by SLT champion (Director of Children’s
Services). One Source HR, supported by Public Health, has drafted a workplace wellbeing action plan covering
the eight key themes of the London Healthy Workplace Charter®*:

Main successes/outcomes

* Three cohorts of mental health first aid training delivered

* The Town Hall Pantry is making ongoing revisions to the menu to encourage healthy eating, for example using
50% wholemeal and 50% white pasta (instead of 100% white) and removing sugary drinks from sale.

» A Havering has a heart® fund-raising lunchtime walk, led by Workplace Wellbeing SLT champion(June 18)

» Staff benefits included corporate-rate membership with Everyone Active, including new Sapphire Centre

* Health champion reprocurement in 2018 included KPls to support LBH workplace wellbeing

Plans for 18-19

Continue to develop the action plan, for example:

* Asaresult of the Havering has a heart fundraising walk, further lunchtime walks are planned

* Explore the introduction of the calorie-burning Steplockey as part of the workplace wellbeing initiative.
Steplockey originated from a Department of Health funded initiative; evaluation showed that stair climbing
increases as a result, with all of the health benefits that this brings

*  Health champion programme will continue to support LBH workplace wellbeing

* Explore opportunities to influence businesses and SMEs in the borough to consider workplace health

%% https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health/workplace-health-applying-all-our-
health

! https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-and-work-infographics/the-importance-of-health-and-work

*? The eight key themes are corporate support for wellbeing, health and safety, tobacco and smoking, attendance, mental health
and wellbeing, physical activity, healthy eating, problematic use of alcohol/substances

2 Supported British Heart Foundation, and raised £750

24
Page 68


https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health/workplace-health-applying-all-our-health
https://www.gov.uk/government/publications/health-and-work-infographics/the-importance-of-health-and-work

Appendix of health improvement promotions/campaigns 2018-19

2018-19 Health Improvement Communications Calendar

Statutory

Profile

Child Fowerty Aussasrment]

Lecalty Profies

5 Campaign
=]
T Type
Dvarview of Heslth & This b Hivvariog Deap Dives (the after 15th
| maverine | [ soclal Care Nasts In Myl - Malgratizn of;
3 [rns—— Hanomring PRGH HILE This i bansering This b Hering - Mouning
- n n ntarective Ward Health -

- Mtm=tai tieaith

BHE Director of Fublic Health Annual Repor [Togic b be chosen)

69 N ghes

Tobacoo Control and infantfeeding | priority topics promoted all year rownd )

Jura Evere
Wik and Secondhand
Smocks

Edition 182
- ifuritfrading Ca)

Wi of Emproving haith

pirpmical acthlty amd Baakiny

Bs Cimar o= Cancer [LGWE)

[[t-]

- M raakhisr e

- mtrison [ LSAE]

OneYou
Wiarrtal Fmalth (L0} - e E— A — g el b e T — Charge o e ke
Talldng Tharnghes - Dabates wask e | '™ g 1A e R 3 Corvear i [ —— - Pl B AR ) - Dy Jarusiry: AN} '""":_m-“l . - Fasteiton (CBY - Bt WA L5}
Heart Haahs snomaming A oreera Heaith - BLDC & .
EAP-Scarom S axe [L5) recking damrsran ez comune iL5) e | B ) Bt (husge tor Litw BoDC & B Smcking Dy (15)

frtrois - mee A ST L5

= ca mescicpincs (151 aarting fusi retwrrtnading (C) - aptober fL5E) oty et this wirter - Fis Jaba - 5
B AR sk AN () (] et (155
Surmmar Edftion: [Summmar Edition 1- A ibumn tdmon- [iear taren Spring Eetion:
e rifweding $08] MARrALCWY waacing JCA) e i Stary sl | Winber (200 Sugar Smart (CA)
Hepcdrithon fGun e Hyration clder peaple: |-uahe Crampiane 15) Party Saion Drinking [AR] Ol el (O8]
[cHilsran] [CA) e oz bar LB) — A Fsaithinr Mew Yaar - Stopping
Drad hamith {ca) s oy pelem iy Schiool Mk Srrchng (18]
Acthes Chibiean [£4] futieien (71 Py e m— el haalth (1]
B Cimar o Cameer [ it i 3 v an gess e Reastume ()
[w——" 71 s 6y [P ——ra vp—
jacoc s
Heart Haaith
Worens Heaith
ancompsing phyaloi Ear Mharn Hesith B Clear on Cancar
Maral Haalth acthty ans hmary e Boac apanbar - Booc v t—— e dan e Tou Chistape e Ll iy ————"—
+ Mmnopese
waning
Hewrt Health
1 amalth Mo Ehyalal Phyulcal Activity - i Stoptober Bvet atay wall this wirner sty weal thi wrimter Drysanuary Eremt Change for Ufe hmalthy Strois
e acthity and haaky ——— == - + BEOE » e Hasith + By Januery + HLCFrometion Emting + W0 Smoking Dey
ating

{L5) / Haalth in all policies (LD) / Health Protection (EG)

T PH Wb Dewsnpmem
- Web Parbrmance - Riw Coiirs
Toboen Contesl infentfeadng Infartfesding Infurrtfoeding Irfan= emding: Tobacin Contral InfarEfeeding
Toboo Comiol | o g e wmaring o per Fekacca Comtral Tabecc Soatral - Lozal infant Fesding - Mo Smoking Sarvoes | - StarsdLis wearing o e
e St fEA] - waging 8] ey ) Scharna [CA] - Ihegal Tobeccn [(B) Saspport foa) =y FrE joA)
e Tou Change 4 Lte - Phyical o e You i ou s Change 4 L. e ]
~ Bk Walking Bcmbity - Haalth Chack Toolicl - Haptcber B T ~ Straks (At LAST)
ﬁ ] Ona You e Yeu O Yaw O Yau Cm Tou ChaTou
2 = hstritiona jCa) - Binod Prars |LE) - Briak Wdking [Lt) ~ Haalth Chack Toslki (L) - EEoptobe (18] - Haaith Harrrs [L5] ~ W Wy, Rearw Yiru (B
Fublic: HearHr
L] oo MHS BODC MHZS
England | strote fAct pAST] 12y e s e ey s ey N =N et ~Strake (AP ASE] L5
3 Shade gnifies that
Sart & L - Charyge 4 Life - Phyiosl Charge 4 Lifa - Physesl Chang 4 Life EONTS
= o bl [ ———— Activity f£A) activiy (4] e LI m ] - [

25




This page is intentionally left blank



_ Agenda Item 7
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: SEND Strategy

Board Lead: Tim Aldridge, Director Children’s Services

Report Author and contact details: Caroline Penfold — Head of Children and
Adults Disability Service | 01708 431743

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

X Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

X Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

X Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

X Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

SUMMARY

In July 2018 the Board received a report which highlighted the outcomes of the Local
Area Inspection of support for children with Special Educational Needs and
Disabilities (SEND) which took place between the 26 February and 2 March 2018.

The Board asked that a refreshed improvement plan of the key areas of
development to be presented to the next meeting of the Board for agreement.

RECOMMENDATIONS

That the Health and Wellbeing Board agrees the accompanying joint area SEND
strategy, encompassing an action plan which addresses SEND improvements and
key areas raised by Ofsted / CQC during inspection.

Page 71



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

A joint area SEND Strategy document accompanies this report.

The Children and Families Act ensures simpler, improved and consistent help for
children and young people with special educational needs and disabilities (SEND). It
extends provision from birth to 25 years of age, giving families greater choice in
decisions and ensure needs are properly met.

The new system became statutory from September 2014 and local areas have been
implementing the reforms since. The reforms extend rights and protection to young
people by introducing a new education, health and care plan (EHCP), ending
previous “statements” of special needs.

The accompanying document is the local area’s first comprehensive SEND strategy,
implementing and embedding the reforms across local authority, health and
education services locally. The strategy addresses the findings of the recent Ofsted /
CQC inspection and states our ambition to build local provision to meet growing
SEND demand.

IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS

Financial implications and risks:

There are no direct implications arising from the report, however, as each agency
and school will be responsible for completing their own actions in the improvement
plan, some financial implications may become apparent for Havering upon
completion of the actions.

Legal implications and risks:
There are no direct implications arising from the report.

Human Resources implications and risks:
There are no direct implications arising from the report.

Equalities implications and risks:
There are no direct implications arising from the report

Page 72



. Havering
NHS Foundation Trust Clinical Commissioning Group ~ wsi LONDON BOROU G H

neer GO e A¢ Haverin

Joint Special Education Needs and Disabilities
(SEND) Strategy

V1.0

Page 73



Document Control

Document details

Name Joint SEND Strategy

Version number

Status

Author Jodie Calder — Service Improvement Officer
Lead officer SEND Executive Board

Approved by Health and Well-Being Board

Review date Identify a date for review — Autumn 2021

Supersedes N/A — first partnership-wide strategy

Target audience SEND Partnership
Related to High Needs block Review, Self-Evaluation.

Version history

Version ‘ Status ‘ Date Dissemination/Change

draftVo.1 1° draft 19.10.2017 Sl':'ND E{(ecut/ve Board for m/t/a/. information and
discussion around what else to include

draftvo.2 2nd Draft 16.01.2018 f’artner organ./sat/ons fo populate the .a.ct/on plan and
include more information on vulnerability.

draftv0.3 3" Draft 11.05.2018 Post-Ofsted report being published

Approval history

Version Status Approved by

Final To be 12"

version 1.0 approved by September Health and Wellbeing Board
’ HWB 2018

Page 74



Contents
[DToYo10] 3 Y]] A @] 2} 4 o ] FERTRT PO PPTORPPRRRPPPPR

Do Yol B0 g T=T ol e [=Y = Y| £ ST SRI
VLT £ Lo T 4115 o oV PPN
F YT Yo XY= 1 I a1 1) o VAU UURPURN
Equality IMpPact ASSESSMENT FECONT .......iiiiiciiiieieiiiee et ee e ettt e e et e e e e etre e e e esateeeeeaabaeeeeastaeeesaasaeeeensaeeesanssseesansseeesanssneenn
VT o To L =T P P P PP PP P P PP PP PP PPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPPR:
LV A L] Lo ISP PSPPI POPUPPPPTOE
o [ot e =T o Lo T =0 LSRR
AIMS, 0DJECLIVES BNT OULCOME ... .iiiiiiiiiie ettt e et e e et e e e s ste e e e esataee e e s sbeeeeaasbaeeeasssaeesansseseeanssaeesanssaeeeanssenesennrens
Local Authority ObjJectives and OULCOMIES ......cccccuiiieieiiiieeeciteeeeirte e e eeteeeeertreeeeestteeeeesataeeessasaeeesassaeeesassseessasssesesansseeens
Health ObjJectives and OULCOMES .....ciicuiiiiiiiiie ettt e st e e st e e s sabeeeesataeeesabaeeeeassseeesassseaesassseeesansseaean
(o [UTorTaTeT oW O] o =Tord Y or-TaTo N @ UL dolo] o o 1= TSR
JOINT COMIMIEMENTS ..ttt ettt e e e e e ettt t e e e e e e e a e b et teeeee e e aneb et eeeeee e e nnnsaeeeeeeeesannnneneeeeeann
SNV Lot [0 ] o PP PPPPPPPRS
I LT or 1= SRR PPR
(@70 0TIV =1 4o [P
Implementation aNd MONITOIING .......ocuiiiiiiee e e e e e st e e e e st e e e e s sabeeeessabeeeeesabaeeeeanseeesennseeeeenasens
RV [V LA TeT g T Ta o I g =LY 1= SRR

YT 1= o Yo [0t Vot oY o I o4 - T RSP

Page 75



Purpose

The purpose of this strategy is to set out a shared vision, priorities and a joint commitment to make suitable and
effective provision for all Havering children and young people with Special Educational Needs or Disabilities (SEND)
from birth to 25 years. This strategy reflects a commitment across the partnership, to work collaboratively between
Education, Health and Social Care to improve the lives and life chances of children with special needs and disabilities.

The term ‘special educational needs’ does not mean the child/young person’s needs will only be educational. Whilst
educational progress is the core of the SEND Code of Practice, ensuring that children and young people with SEND
have good opportunities to make progress and achieve their potential in life requires a broader approach which
includes social and health care needs.

Children and young people with SEND are particularly vulnerable to being targeted in relation to Child Sexual
Exploitation (CSE), radicalisation or being involved with gangs. It is the responsibility of schools, parents, the local
authority and voluntary sector agencies to play a significant role in preventing vulnerable children and young people
from becoming involved in such activities. This strategy reflects the close work between agencies and also the local
authority teams working with SEND children across education, health and safeguarding services.

Vision

Our vision is to support children and young people with SEND to meet their full potential and live healthy, fulfilling
lives in their local community. We will achieve this vision by ensuring all agencies work together with children, young
people and their families to identify children with SEND at the earliest possible opportunity and provide them with
the support they need to make good educational progress and achieve desired outcomes.

Our commitment to person-centred planning ensures children and young people’s voices are a central focus of all
work across the partnership in Havering.

Facts and Figures
The estimated population of the London Borough of Havering is 249,085. Of this, there are 74,979 children and
young people (aged 0-24).

The school population of Havering continues to grow with the increase in the children’s population. There were
39,598 pupils, who are Havering’s sole or dual main registrations, were captured within the January 2017 SEN2
Survey.

In Havering there are currently 1,136 children and young people (aged 0-25) who have an Education, Health and
Care Plan (EHCP) or a statement of need (2.4% of our population of school-age children and young people). There
are a further 2,583 children and young people who have additional needs and receive SEN support but who do not
meet the threshold for an EHCP.

Aims, objectives and outcome

Havering’s main aim is to join up support across education, health and care for those children and young people
aged 0-25 years with SEND, while ensuring children, young people and their families are informed, supported and
empowered to be more resilient and independent within their communities. We believe that every child and young
person should have their needs met (as far as possible) in their local community, in local early years settings, schools,
colleges and work places and achieve positive outcomes. We will ensure that all children, their parents and young
people are involved in discussions and decisions about their individual support and about local provision.

Page 76



Local Authority Objectives and Outcomes

The Corporate Plan sets out how the Council’s new vision, “Havering; making a Greater London”, will be
accomplished. The underlying objectives within the Council’s vision that relate to children and young people with
SEND, include, but are not limited to, working in partnership with Health and other key partners to deliver improved
services that are ‘person-centred’ and provide better value for money.

Children’s Services has an overarching vision to ‘enable our children and families to lead happy, healthy lives’. To
support this vision, advice and information will be available to help families make positive change and to find their
own solutions. We will be open and transparent and through co-production and collaboration we will be doing
‘with’, not ‘to’, our children, young people and families. Services will be delivered more locally to fit the needs of the
family, and those with additional needs will get the right support as we will listen to every child’s voice. We will
shape the school system to provide high quality education so that schools are more inclusive and they can support
the aspirations of the most disadvantaged children.

Through this joined up approach, we will ensure that children and young people’s needs are identified and met at
the earliest opportunity, and that support provided is consistent and inclusive across all settings. As part of this, we
will have an accurate and full picture of a child or young person’s needs through, whether through a co-produced
EHC Plan or through person-centred SEN support.

Parent involvement in their child’s journey is essential to this strategy. Through the EHC Hub and Local Offer,
children, young people and their families will be able to support their own SEND journeys. In order to make sure the
website is accessible and has information that is useful, the Local Offer will be co-produced with parents and young
people. With the new EHC Hub, families, children and young people are at the centre of the process and it enables
collaboration and transparency with all professionals involved, delivering a more timely and high quality service.

Supporting young people with SEND to successfully transition into adulthood and being aspirational for their
outcomes is also a key priority. A working protocol for preparation for adulthood in Havering sets out the clear vision
for the borough and how this will be achieved. Each partner’s roles and responsibilities have been developed into
four pathways so the transition through to adulthood is better understood by children and young people, their
families and the professionals to ensure a smoother pathway is taken for all involved.

Early intervention remains a priority in Havering. We are investing in early years support, working with early years
providers to help and support children aged 0-5 in all settings. We have early years SENCos and have established an
inclusion fund to provide funding for top-up support and equipment where necessary.

Health Objectives and Outcomes

Health will work with providers and partners to ensure that services being delivered will be caring, responsive, well
led and delivered in sustainable environments. Services being reviewed will, as a primary aim, seek to be fully
integrated including within the areas of information sharing and EHC Plan preparation.

In support of these aims, NELFT will support with the development of integrated information sharing that supports
increased access to child and family health information required to develop EHC plans. This will ensure an improved
system around sharing of relevant information with clear shared protocols and governance. Health partners’ input
into EHCPs will be consistent and outcomes-focused as agreed with families to ensure that the EHCP gives a full
picture of a child or young person’s needs. Staff will follow best practice in the provision of clarity and precision to
EHC plans, in what services can be provided and how such services should be delivered for maximum clinical benefit.

Health will work to reduce the delays experienced by families in accessing services and will aim for all infants to
receive the integrated two-and-a-half year check. The CCG and NELFT will work together to ensure all families have
access to ante-natal visits and six-week health checks, as well as ensuring all children have access to the universal
school nursing services and community nurses from 0-18.

Page 77



The CCG and the DCO will work in conjunction with the Local Authority, the continuing care manager and NELFT in
order to aid the development of the Children's Continuing Health Care and Personal Health Budgets policies.

Education Objectives and Outcomes

Quality First Teaching remains our schools first response to the identification of SEND, but they also ensure that
children receive high quality additional support and interventions matched to their needs. Schools take the views of
children into account when planning and evaluating their SEND provision. Every student’s views are considered, their
efforts recognised, and their achievements celebrated.

Schools will ensure that all children have equal access to a broad, balanced curriculum, which is adapted to meet
individual needs and abilities, and a range of activities available. This will be achieved by modifying activities or
providing support that will help the pupil to participate in them.

Schools will continue to make sure their staff are well-equipped to support children and young people with SEND.
School staff are encouraged to attend SEND courses appropriate to their needs and offer advice to other teachers
throughout the school if required, and we will ensure that measures are put in place to demonstrate the
effectiveness of tis training.

Advanced planning for children in Year 5 is in place to allow a smooth transition to secondary school. The SENCOs
will liaise to ensure that effective arrangements are in place to support children at the time of transfer.

The education of young people is a collaborative enterprise involving teachers, parents and the students themselves.
Regular, meaningful and positive communication between teachers and parents is of fundamental importance.
Parents are sufficiently informed that they can be fully involved with the measures that the school is taking to meet
their child’s special educational needs and disabilities. Schools continue to work to ensure that support delivered in
schools for pupils without EHC Plans is of a high standard and fully meets the needs of the child, removing the
preconception that EHC Plans are the only recourse to guarantee provision.

Schools are fully committed to the principle of inclusion and the good practice that makes it possible. All schools
within Havering have their own SEND policy which enables pupils with SEND to be an integral part of the schools
community, yet will work together to ensure there is a consistent approach to inclusivity. This will secure equal
opportunities for pupils with SEND to succeed, regardless of their educational setting.

Joint Commitments
Between the Local Authority, the CCG and health providers (NELFT), we have shared accountability for ensuring

children and young people achieve positive outcomes. Key partners within the local authority are Children’s and
Adult’s Social Care and Education Services. We also have a joint commitment with early year’s settings, primary,
secondary, special schools and colleges along with the Housing department and other providers.

Roles and joint accountability are clear and are focused on the needs of the child and young person. Information,
decision making and funding will be transparent and integrated services will be delivered through working in
partnership to achieve improved outcomes for children and young people.

Parents hold key information and have knowledge and experience to contribute to the shared view of a child's needs
and the best ways of supporting them. In order to develop and maintain a high level of engagements with parents,
all parents of children with SEND will be treated as partners and supported to play an active and valued role in their
child’s education. The improvement of co-production and engagement with parents is a high priority for the local
area and we will work to make sure that their involvement in the design of services is meaningful.

Page 78



Likewise, the local area is committed to jointly commission services and shape the market to provide the best
possible care that meets the needs of children and young people. Parents will be fully involved in the commissioning
of services, such as short breaks, to ensure services are able to meet the needs of Havering’s children and young
people with SEND.

Children and young people with SEND often have a unique knowledge of their own needs and circumstances, leading
to their own views about what sort of help they would like to help them make the most of their education. They will
be encouraged to participate in the decision-making processes, including the setting and evaluation of targets. We
are committed to developing more person-centred ways of working to make it easier for our children and young
people with SEND to express their views.

The Local Authority, Education and Health partners are responsible for improving the lived experience of the child
and young person from initial assessment to completion of EHC plan and all annual reviews. This will be achieved
through providing best practice training and development across the workforce and quality assuring all plans.

Key actions
The Ofsted inspection report, published in May 2018 provided assurance that the SEND reforms are being

implemented locally, in line with national expectations and that the local area has a broadly accurate view of
strengths and weaknesses. There are a number of key policies, strategies and work programmes that are currently
being, or will be, developed to ensure we achieve the objectives and commitments stated in this strategy and also
meet the recommendations outlined by Ofsted earlier in 2018. These are highlighted in more detail within the action
plan (appendix 1), including but are not limited to:

e Establishing a single data set of performance measures and outcomes — the measures will be regularly reviewed
and used to inform effectiveness of support and areas for further development.

e Havering’s High Needs Review and Strategy - sets out how we will make all Havering provision the first choice for
children, young people and their families, how we will ensure there is sufficient provision, appropriately resourced
and that it can adapt to meet changing needs and demands.

e Therapy Review - Review and identify the Therapy services on offer to those children and young people with
SEND, ensuring they are fit for purpose, properly resourced and identify any gaps.

e Local Offer - Continue to develop, maintain and keep the local offer up to date through the partnership work
with a Local Offer Steering Group, which includes children, young people and their families to ensure it is
responsive to their needs.

e EHC Hub - establish the EHC hub, an interactive web-based platform to make our EHC assessment and planning
process more efficient and transparent, supporting inclusion of all partners including children/young people and
parents.

e Jointly Commissioned Services - A single joint commissioning process which will inform the commissioning of
services for those children and young people with SEND.

e Developing new provision - Commission a new free school which will meet the needs of children and young
people in the borough.

e Additional Resourced Provision - Deliver a programme of new provision to see a better distribution across the
borough and throughout both primary and secondary schools.

e Review of EHC Processes — Improve the quality of EHCPs from partners, ensuring that they paint an accurate
picture and are produced in a timely way to ensure need is met at the earliest opportunity. Support the EHC Panel
to become a more efficient, focussed and professional decision making forum that supports the ethos of the
legislation introduced.

e A SEND Executive Board - comprised of partners across education, health and social care, it will manage and
monitor implementation of SEND reforms, putting children and young people are the centre of planning.

Page 79



e Excellent transition into adulthood - Provide an excellent transition to ensure that every young person with SEND
(age 13 up to age 25) and their parents/ carers have a smooth and positive experience of transition along the
four pathways into adulthood.

The action plan will become a working document and will be updated regularly with progress reports being provided
to the SEND Executive Board, overseen by the Health and Wellbeing Board.

Timescales

The plan is for this strategy to be agreed at the Health and Wellbeing Board in September 2018, running throughout
2018-2021.

Consultation

Consultation to form this strategy has been via key stakeholders from the local authority, the CCG, NELFT, schools
and other education settings, through the SEND Executive Board and local SENCos. Each of the key policies,
strategies and work programmes that are currently being, or will be, developed (referred to above) will be subject to
individual consultation processes.

Implementation and monitoring
The strategy will be implemented in 2018, following agreement and sign off at the Havering Health and Wellbeing
Board.

An action plan (appendix 1) for delivering the strategy, will be monitored to ensure effective implementation, at the

SEND Executive Board. They will, in turn, provide updates and highlight areas of concern to the Health and Wellbeing
Board when deemed appropriate.

Evaluation and review
The strategy will be evaluated and reviewed following the completion of the action plan.

Page 80



Appendix 1: Outline Action Plan

Project/Action

Actions

Outcomes

Measure of Success

Timescale

Lead officer

Impact on other services
and organisation

High Needs Strategy
and action plan

Consult with key providers on
the High Needs Review

Produce a High Needs Review
document highlighting the

The High Needs Funding
allocated to Havering will be
used to provide the most
appropriate support package for
an individual with SEND in a

A Strategy and action
plan that will be
understood and
endorsed by the
Havering partnership to

Submit review by 14°
February 2018

Strategy and action
plan agreed by lead

Post 16 SEND Lead

Consultation with partners
(Adult Services, Health,
Education, Children and
Young people, Parents and
Carers) is essential to make

T8 abed

outcomes of the Review range of settings and develop deliver a range of local member March 2018 sure they are involved every
more efficient ways of working, provisions to meet the step of the way.

Produce a High Needs Strategy providing better outcomes for needs of Havering

highlighting the plan following children and young people. children.

the review

Detailed action plan is outlined

in the separate high needs

strategy.

Therapy Review Consult with stakeholders Understand the issues that exist | Options appraisal End October 2018 Joint Commissioning Consultation with Partners

in the system and to determine Manager (CAD, Health commissioner

Map what is currently provided what improvements could be for and provider, Education,

and understand provision & future services. There is now a Children and Young people,

future need to understand how Parents and Carers) is
resources could be utilised and essential to make sure they

Develop options appraisal and deployed more efficiently in are involved every step of

submit to CCG/LA order to reduce duplication. In the way.
addition to these arrangements,

Understand the revised offer to

develop sensory approach /

early intervention and feed into

the review

Local Offer Produce a Local Offer Action The Local Offer information and | The number of visitors to | October 2018 Commissioning, Officers from across the LA,

Plan.

Regroup the Local Offer Steering
Group.

advice enables children, young
people and their families to
support their own SEND journey.

the Local Offer increases

The number of calls into
services for information
is reduced.

Procurement and
Quality Assurance
Manager

as well as partners from
Health and Education,
parents, young people and
providers will be involved in
creating and maintaining the

9




Project/Action

Actions

Outcomes

Measure of Success

Timescale

Lead officer

Impact on other services
and organisation

Develop content across all
sections.

Develop process for Disability
Children’s Register

Positive feedback from
parents, young people
and other users.

information available on the
local offer is kept up to date
through the Local Offer
Steering Group.

28 abed

Jointly commissioned To develop an outcome focused | commissioning services to allow | Services are provided to JCU Manager Officers from across the LA,
Services joint commissioning model for them to be more flexible and those in need in a timely as well as partners from
young people with complex and | responsive to individual and way. NELFT Health and Education,
multiple needs. family needs LA CAD service parents, young people and
Pathways to support are providers will be involved in
. . established and shaping and developing the
Integrated approaches to Joint assessment, more timely .
S ) . 7 seamless. offer and future services.
commissioning of therapies and | equipment provision,
mental health interventions, centralls.ed reuse and Commissioning
purchasing, better value for intentions are discussed Commitment and clear
A single pathway for the money. an.d agreed t'hr.ough the understanding f.rom all.

- o Data i d tively t Tri Borough joint partners regarding their
provision of specialist ; ata {s use e:ff ec /v‘e yto commissioning board specific roles and
equipment; identify gaps in services and (children’s) responsibilities.

ensure timely commissioning of
» services identified by local need. Strong data set to
An evidence-based sensory - .
" y t need dentified and inform strategic
approach to treatment for r?me nee .s qre I en /f{e an commissioning.
NELFT specialist paediatric Joint Commissioning Unit
therapists. responds to the changing needs
of the communities.
Increase the scale and scope of
personalisation and the
infrastructure that supports it.
Shape the market Increase the capacity of the The number of providers able to | Increased numbers of July 2019 Commissioning, Officers from across the LA,
place market of care and support those with complex providers in the market Procurement and as well as partners from
short break providers. needs is increased and families Quality Assurance Health and Education,
and choice and control over how | Commissioning of Manager parents, young people and

Develop business case for the
development of local respite
provision.

needs are met.

services is flexible and
meets individual needs.

providers will be involved in
shaping and developing the
offer and future services

10




Project/Action

Actions

Outcomes

Measure of Success

Timescale

Lead officer

Impact on other services
and organisation

£g abed

Develop new Social Utilise the developing Joint Services developed from Robust set of Q1 onwards 2017/18 Commissioning, Full involvement of partner
Care provision Commissioning structures to inception to follow full specifications Procurement and organisations from inception
integration best practice and to | demonstrating Quality Assurance
ensure new approaches to o . . . .
) ) ) facilitate seamless service user innovative solutions to Manager / CCG Lead
service delivery with full access joint commissioning
integration as part of the design opportunities with
brief agreed baselines and
success indicators
To develop new social care Greater choice of provider Fewer family breakdown | 1-2 years
overnight respite provision to locally, high quality provision situations
support families with most which supports families to stay
complex needs in Havering together
Additional Resourced To develop more ARPs in A wider range of local provisions | Reduction of spend on 2 per year 18/19 Director of Education /
Provision (ARP’s) Havering. Target is to have at to reduce the need to travel out | out of borough 19/20 20/21 Head of CAD services
. of borough. placements,
least 2 more primary and 2 .
Reduction on travel.
more secondary ARPs High quality and responsive Children being educated
specialising in ASD and SEMH. provisions that can support in their local community
children with EHC plans and where possible alongside
need for specialist provision to siblings.

make the best progress in
achieving their desired
outcomes.

New Free Special

Continue with the selection

A new special school giving

The school is popular

Working towards

Director of Education /

School for 60 children process to choose provider in specialist education and support | with families and opening Sept 2019 but | Head of CAD services
and young people with . . . for children and their families achieves outstanding more detailed project
severe/ complex conjunction with DfE. with ASD, SEMH and complex results. plan will be developed
SEMH/ ASD neds.

Confirm site work with provider Providing exp eft/se in the

) borough to deliver excellent
and DfE to establish new school. educational and therapeutic
outcomes for our children.

Employment Improve the opportunities for Establishing employment forum | Where outlined in their Plan in place May
opportunities young people to experience the to bring together employment EHC and suppor't plans, 2018

world of work and, where support. mor'*e p?o'ple gaining and

) ) ) maintaining
appropriate, move into paid employment.

11




Project/Action

Actions

Outcomes

Measure of Success

Timescale

Lead officer

Impact on other services
and organisation

employment

Support young people to learn
new skills by providing them
opportunities to participate in
various local community events

Developing job coaches and
supported internships with local
schools and colleges.

8 abed

EHCP Process Monitor the newly launched The EHC panel is delivering an EHC Panels is used Review September Head of CAD services More commitment from
panel arrangements, hold appropriate forum for timely appropriately and clear 2018 officers from Health,
formal review session at 12 multi-agency discussions, agreement is in place on Education and Social Care to
months of operation and update | agreement and decision commitments and ensure panel is always
guidance documents making, including dispute expectations on the represented by the key
accordingly resolution. panel members. partners.

Review the structure and The Complex Cases Panel plays Input from the Panel is Q1 2017/18 onwards An integrated part of best
utilisation of the ‘Complex Cases | an expanded and fully seamless and adds value practice structures
Panel’ to ensure maximum integrated role within the within and expanded
efficacy. collaborative working systems remit including CHC.
and includes Continuing
Healthcare (CHC) within its
remit.

Preparing for To provide excellent transition Young people are supported to Every young person with | Review March 2019 Head of CAD services / | Engagement and

Adulthood care in Havering to ensure that plan for what they want to special educational Head of Adults Social commitment from all
every Young Person with Special | achieve. needs and disabilities, Care agencies and stakeholders

Educational Needs and
Disabilities from school year 9
up to age 25 years and their
parents/carers have a smooth
and positive transition along the
four pathways to adulthood
(Good health, employment,
independent living and housing
and friend, community and
relationships).

Young people are able to access
the same opportunities as other
young people.

Young people are able to access
support to find a job, make new
friends, and stay living with
their family.

Parents and carers are listened

moving from Children’s
into Adult Services, will
receive services and
support according to
need and eligibility,
taking into account the
impact of his/her needs
on wellbeing and on the
wellbeing of parents
and/ or carers.

i.e.: Adult Social care, health,

CAMHS, Commissioning etc.

12




Project/Action

Actions

Outcomes

Measure of Success

Timescale

Lead officer

Impact on other services
and organisation

Develop the business case to
further develop housing options
for young people in transition,
this will include supported
living.

to and fully involved.

The transition process is
coordinated, systematic
and consistent with close
partnership working
between all
professionals and

Gg abed

agencies.

Processes / Pathways To strengthen the current Havering transition processes Evidence of early July 2018 and ongoing | Head of CAD services/ | Commitment and clear
Preparing for Adulthood are working well for all children | engagement with young Head of Adults Social understanding from all
processes and pathways within not just for some and people and their families Care partners regarding their
Children and Adults with intervention happens at an early | and positive user specific roles and
Disabilities Service and continue | enough stage. experience feedback responsibilities.
to develop a multiagency received.
approach to transition in line Young People and their families
with Care Act 2014 and Children | are well supported, informed Increase in number of
and Families Act 2014 and fully involved to make their | young people accessing
requirements. own choices. universal services.

Increase in number of
young people in
employment and local
further education and
Increased take up of
personal budgets.

Workforce To ensure the workforce across Remits and roles are understood | Reduced instances of July 2018 and ongoing | Head of CAD services/ | Commitment and clear
schools, local authority, health by everyone working with young | duplication and evidence Head of Adults Social understanding from all
and service providers have a people on the four pathways to of a targeted approach Care partners regarding their
clear understanding of the adulthood. that promotes specific roles and
preparing for adulthood independence. responsibilities.
pathways.

Person centred To ensure young people are at That young people and their Develop local Post 16 July 2018 and ongoing | Head of CAD services / | Commitment and clear

planning and the centre of the transition Parents’ are aware of the and Post 19 options for Head of Adults Social understanding from all
planning process, giving them pathways to independence and education and life skills. Care partners regarding their

approaches:

choice and control over their
own future.

that planning begins from year
9.

specific roles and
responsibilities.

13




Project/Action

Actions

Outcomes

Measure of Success

Timescale

Lead officer

Impact on other services
and organisation

practice and encourage schools

Havering.

Health, Education, Health, education, CAMHS and Health, education and adult Statutory reviews in July 2018 and ongoing | Head of CAD services / | Commitment and clear
CAMHS and Adult adult social care colleagues are social care contribute to schools from Year 9 are Head of Adults Social understanding from all
Social Care: key partners in the transition planning and decision making to | used to develop Care partners regarding their
process. support the transition of young independence and specific roles and
people into adulthood. families/ CYP responsibilities.
participation.
Adult Social care is able
to plan services so that
they can respond
appropriately to the
support needs of young
o people with disabilities.
Q)| Communication Co-produce key documents and Children, young people and their September 2018 Programme Manager
© policies such as Home to school | parents/carers are kept
D transport, short breaks, informed of any improvement
00 personal budgets and a
D communications plan.
Work in conjunction with the Ongoing
local authority communications
team, schools and health (CCG
and NELFT) to provide
information we want our
children/ young people and
their families to be aware of.
May 2019
Organise an engagement event
to showcase the work being
completed.
Best Practice / Quality | Local authority, schools and The Local Authority, Education Assessment is effective, Ongoing Programme Manager
Assurance settings to exploit best practice and Health partners will work in | provision is meeting
when devising interventions. a more integrated way and take | need and young people SEND Executive Board
shared responsibility for achieve better
Share experiences of best improving the provision in outcomes. Ongoing SEND Executive Board

14




Project/Action

Actions

Outcomes

Measure of Success

Timescale

Lead officer

Impact on other services
and organisation

and LA to adopt them.

Prevent and Hate

Ensure children and young Late 2018 Crime Co-ordinator
people with SEND and those
who are vulnerable are included
in LA’s revised PREVENT
strategy.
Health CCG to commission NELFT to CCG will work in conjunction To ensure that the On-going CCG Lead / NELFT Commitment of the CCG to
deliver services within Havering. | with NELFT, tertiary centres, health needs of the local Lead work in conjunction with the
voluntary sector, police and the | population are being local authorities, NELFT,
LA. met and the CCG is tertiary centres, police and
transparent with voluntary sector.
processes and protocols
in regards to joint
commissioning.

/8 abed

15




Page 88

16



_ Agenda Item 8
%¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

HEALTH & WELLBEING BOARD

Subject Heading: Cancer
Board Lead: Mark Ansell, Acting Director of Public Health
Report Author and contact details: Elaine Greenway, Consultant in Public Health

The subject matter of this report deals with the following themes of the Health
and Wellbeing Strategy

DX Theme 1: Primary prevention to promote and protect the health of the
community and reduce health inequalities

X Theme 2: Working together to identify those at risk and intervene early
to improve outcomes and reduce demand on more expensive services
later on

X] Theme 3: Provide the right health and social care/advice in the right
place at the right time

X Theme 4: Quality of services and user experience

‘ SUMMARY ‘

The Health and Wellbeing Board is receiving presentations on the topic of cancer
which is a health and wellbeing strategy priority.

‘ RECOMMENDATIONS ‘

Health and wellbeing board members are asked to note the contents of the
presentations and request clarification on any aspect of the information presented.

‘ REPORT DETAIL ‘

Page 89



&¢ Havering

et LONDON BOROUGH

Presentations are being received on the following (and as attached)

o Overview (Mark Ansell, Director of Public Health)

e Health champion programme (Health Champion Service)

e Cancer services (CCG)

e Living with cancer:
o Access to Work (Department for Work and Pensions)
o Exercise (YMCA)

‘ IMPLICATIONS AND RISKS ‘

None

‘ BACKGROUND PAPERS ‘

None

Page 90



.+ Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Cancer in Havering




v+ Havering

mxt LONDON BOROUGH

The national challenge

4 out of 10 avoidable deaths in England are a result of cancer (ONS).
® @ @ @
One in two people will develop cancer at some point in their lives (CRUK).

)

At the end of 2015 around 1.8 million people were living up to 21 years after a cancer
diagnosis in England, This could rise to an estimated 2.9 million by 2030) (Macmillan).

26 abed

Locally this means: At the end of 2015, around 8,225 people in NHS Havering CCG were
living up to 21 years after a cancer diagnosis. This could rise to an estimated 13,270 by 2030.

www.havering.gov.uk



v+ Havering

w: LONDON BOROUGH

The national picture

LI

In 2016, approximately three out of ten of all deaths were attributed to cancer.

cp abed

Most common cancers |
In 2015 more than half of new
il

)

cases of cancer are breast,
prostate, lung and bowel
cancer.

g

www.havering.gov.uk



Cancer Statistics

r Havering

*® LONDON BOROUGH

Incidence rate per . Death, DSR per 100,000, .
One year survival Suvival for 10 or
Cancer 100,000 (2014) 2014 Preventable
more years,
type . . . cases, 2015, UK
Havering |England | Havering |England| Havering |England | 2010-11,E& W
Breast 149.6 173.4 95.9% 96.3% | 42.5(N=59) 34.5 78% 23%
Lyng 76.6 78.3 36.5% 35.5% | 53.7 (N=127) 59.0 5% 79%
@
Ryostate 153.5 177.6 N/A N/A 44.1 (N=42) 48.2 84% Not known*
~
Bowel 74.0 70.4 77.6% 76.7% | 24.1(N=60) 27.8 57% 54%

*Preventable cases of prostate cancer are not known as it is not clearly linked to any preventable risk factors

Lung cancer has the highest mortality rate, but is the most preventable
High incidence of prostate and breast cancers - both have relatively high survival rate

Source: NHS digital - PHE and Cancer Research UK

www.havering.gov.uk




Incidence of cancer in Havering w¢ Havering

dwixt: LONDON BOROUGH

Cancer Incidence in LBH* Incidence in LBH* Diagnosis
type per 100,000 per 100,000
(Male) (Female)
Breast Havering (160) Lower Through signs and symptoms
----- than England (169) National screening programme

}owel Havering (79) Lower Havering (60) Lower than Through signs and symptoms
T than England (89) England (58) National screening programme
©
a1

Prostate = Havering (190) Higher Through signs and symptoms

than England (181) -

Lung Havering (93) Similarto  Havering (65) Similar to Through signs and symptoms
England (94) England

*Age standardised incidence rates against England values (per 100, 000) 2011/2015

5
www.havering.gov.uk



One year survival in Havering

Adults (15-99) diagnosed in 2015 and followed up to 2016

‘;ﬁ All 71.3% 72.3%

©

7 Breast 96.3% 96.7%
Bowel 78.6% 80.4%
Lung 40.2% 40.7%

Source: https://Ici.macmillan.org.uk/England/08f/survival

. 6
www.havering.gov.uk



Havering — Variances ¢ Havering

msirr: LONDON BOROUGH

Emergency presentation (per 100,000) —
2016/17

TIwo weeks waiting referral for cancer
%per 100,000) — 2016/17 3237 3874 2774 3164
\l

Emergency admission with cancer (per

100,000) — 2016/17 597 470 395 543

Benefit Claimants, cancer patients (%),

February 2018 152 127 123 118

www.havering.gov.uk




Screening v Havering

LONDON BOROUGH

Females, 50-70, screened for breast cancer in last Females, 25-64, attending cervical screening
20 36 months (3 year coverage, %) within target period (3.5 or 5.5 year coverage, %)
| ————— 80
- 70 m——————
__60
E50 g :
%’40 go 40 :
g 39 Havering § 20 ‘H:)‘(’ee"ng
£ 20 Bt 2 0 | vomaon
10 —Edland 10 England
0 0
J R SN LR RN U O & R o @
SE S 10"9 SR L S fp“fb‘ qp‘? ,Lo"f’ m& '19'\9 q,o'»"' ’9\’," ,]94” ’\9»“ ’9«‘,” ’9\5’
0]
O
Qo Persons, 60-69, screened for bowel cancer in last .
M —— Rates of screening for these three
o cancers is almost the same for
< 60 _— Havering, Bexley and England but
= i - i . .o .
s T - significantly higher than London.
‘E =4 e Havering .
g =0 // Bexley Bowel cancer screening programme
a 20 ——London . . . .
10 ,/ _tng:m— started late in Havering, which explains
" .
S o P o o g the low value in 2009/10.
SORPI S N LIPN CP  N

www.havering.gov.uk



Prevention w Havering

s LONDON BOROUGH

smoang | [ NI
High body-mass index - I.III l.l-

Occupational carcinoaens

Alcohol use

Low fruit -

Preventable deaths are those
related to factors such as smoking,

Low physical activity -

Ambient particulate matter S

Suboptimal calcium - high BMI, aICOhOI, IOW fI"Uit, IOW
o . . .
8 Low fiber - physical activity
D Radon -
8 Low milk -
High sodium - [ Smoking is the leading risk factor
unsafe sex - [l for cancer deaths

High processed meat -
High red meat -
Drug use - I

Secondhand smoke -

o] il 400 600 00 i

www.havering.gov.uk



This page is intentionally left blank



Health Champion Programme

A community programme, commissioned by LBH, currently in its 4t year

There are 502 qualified community health champions, including elected
members, health care assistances, library staff, community volunteers,
education staff

18 higher trained Campaign Volunteers

All RSPH trained, with additional training in nutrition, physical activity, diabetes
awareness, drug and alcohol awareness, mental health awareness, cancer
awareness

The health champion programme supports a range of health priorities, including
Be Clear on Cancer campaigns. Over the past year, campaigns have included:

* Bowel cancer

* Lung/respiratory
* Breast cancer

* Blood in pee



This page is intentionally left blank



€0T obed

What is happening locally
&

Future actions — BHR Cancer Transformation Group

Katherine Kavanagh
Cancer Commissioning Manager - BHR & West Essex



v0T abed

What is happening locally?

Cancer education Strategy

Increase awareness of common and vague signs and symptoms of cancer and introducing diagnostic toolkits

YV VY

Encouraging practices to complete SEAs to understand patients who are diagnosed via A&E and implement safety-netting processes

Community based care

Havering Community Oncology Team, Providing support for cancer patients in their own homes, reducing readmissions

YV Vv

Commissioning a local Lymphoedema Service for BHR patients

Cancer Local Incentive Scheme

Practices to improve the quality of Cancer Care Reviews (CCRs) by using a nationally standardised tool such as the Macmillan CCR template

Y Vv

Completion of two mandatory modules of the Macmillan General Practice Cancer Care Toolkit

Cancer Research UK (CRUK) Facilitator supporting:-
Visiting practices and sharing individual Practice Profile data with GPs

Deliver training on NICE Guidance for suspected cancer: update and resources

YV VYV V

Talk Cancer training for community healthcare professionals and community champions

Roll out of the Recovery Package
Holistic Needs Assessments (HNA), Treatment Summaries and Health and Wellbeing events

Stratified pathways of care for breast, prostate and colorectal patients



GOT obed

Future actions — BHR Cancer Transformation Group

 NHSE Transformation funding release to meet waiting times and improve care

* Improved diagnhostic pathways to commence treatment earlier to improve
survival — e.g. national lung optimal pathway

* Work with community and faith groups in order to engage with hard to reach
groups

* Development of a Multiple Diagnostic Centre in ONEL

Work with LA to develop a strategy for health and screening messages for those
with learning disabilities

Use ‘health champions’ to promote health lifestyles and to encourage individuals
to ‘think cancer’

Continue to work with Macmillan and Cancer Research UK to access resources
and funding for innovative projects to improve patient care and survival



This page is intentionally left blank



Department
for Work &
Pensions

Access

An Introduction to
Access to Work

& www.gov.uk/access-to-work




Access to Work is a programme that aims to help people who have a disability or
long-term health condition start or stay in work. There are two main types of
Access to Work provision: ‘Assessments’ and ‘Elements’. Assessments involve
exploring workplace-related barriers to employment and making
recommendations on how these can be overcome. Elements are intended to
supplement the reasonable adjustments that employers are required to make
g-gl;under the Equality Act 2010 and can include, for example:

‘Communication Support for Interviews’

‘Special Aids and Equipment’

‘Adaptations to Premises’

‘Adaptations to Vehicles’

“Travel to Work’ (help with the costs of travelling to work)

“Travel in Work’ (help with the costs of work-related travel)
‘Support Worker’

‘Mental Health Support Service’

‘Miscellaneous’
In some but not all cases an Assessment is required to find out whether a
customer is eligible to receive an Element.

80T-9b6

Department for Work & Pensions



Access to Work Statistics

Main stories

All provision

Access to Work provision was approved for

o
%,020 people
i

|—\
R16/17.

Department for Work & Pensions

Assessments

Assessments were approved for
12,940 people

in

2016/17.

Elements

Elements were approved for
23,630people
in

2016/17.




Access to Work Elements Recent Statistics

The number of people who had any Access to Work Elements of each type
approved

2015/16 2016/17

Adaptation to Premises 20 50
-y Adaptation to Vehicles 130 120
m . .

% Communication . 250 260
. Support for Interviews
5 Miscellaneous 60 40

Travel in Work 430 390

Speplal Aids and 11,120 12,450

Equipment

Support Worker 7,400 8,450

Travel to Work 5,750 5,750

Ment_al Health Support 1280 1,780

Service

Department for Work & Pensions



Access to Work

« Access to Work was introduced in June 1994

- Is a National Programme delivered by Department for Work and
Pensions

To help overcome barriers that disabled people come across when
moving onto or retaining employment.

TTT obed

* Provides a grant to cover additional costs over and above the
requirements of making “reasonable adjustments” which an
employer is legally obliged to provide under the “Equality Act 2010”

- Aflexible programme that focuses on the needs of the individual.

Department for Work & Pensions



What Is a Reasonable Adjustment?

Summary

Where someone meets the definition of a disabled
person in the Equality Act 2010 (the Act) employers are
required to make reasonable adjustments to any
elements of the job which place a disabled person at a
substantial disadvantage compared to non-disabled
people.

21T abed

Employers are only required to make adjustments that
are reasonable. Factors such as the cost and
practicability of making an adjustment and the resources
available to the employer may be relevant in deciding
what is reasonable

Department for Work & Pensions



3 Requirements of Employers Duty to make
Reasonable Adjustments

There are 3 main considerations when determining what reasonable
adjustments could be put in place for an employee

* Changes to the ways in which things are done in the organisation

¢TT obed

* Changes to overcome the barriers created by the physical features
of the workplace

* To provide extra / auxiliary equipment

Department for Work & Pensions



Requirements of Employers Duty to make
Reasonable Adjustments

*changing the recruitment process so a candidate can be considered

for a job

doing things another way, such as allowing someone with social
TJanxiety disorder to have their own desk instead of hot-desking

%-making physical changes to the workplace, like installing a ramp for a
~wheelchair user or an audio-visual fire alarm for a deaf person

h-Ietting a disabled person work somewhere else, such as on the ground
floor for a wheelchair user
*changing their equipment, for instance providing a special keyboard if
they have arthritis
-allowing employees who become disabled to make a phased return to
work, including flexible hours or part-time working
-offering employees training opportunities, recreation and refreshment
facilities

Department for Work & Pensions


https://www.gov.uk/recruitment-disabled-people/reasonable-adjustments

Benefits of Access to Work

Encourages greater independence

* Promotes work as being the best route to inclusion for disabled
people

- Enables disabled people to work on a more equal basis with non
disabled colleagues

GTT obed

- Encourages employers to recruit and retain disabled people by
offering practical help.

* Provides advice to disabled people and their employers

Department for Work & Pensions



Eligibility Criteria - Types Of Help

- Have a disability or health condition that has a long term, adverse
affect on their ability to carry out their job

Be over 16 years old

oIT abed

Be in, or about to start, paid employment (including self
employment)

- Live and work in England, Scotland or Wales

* Not be claiming Incapacity Benefit or ESA once they are in work
(with the exception of higher permitted work)

Department for Work & Pensions

10



To get help from Access to Work you must:

*have a disability or health condition (physical or mental) that makes it hard for you to
do parts of your job or get to and from work

*be 16 or over

*live in England, Scotland or Wales - there’s a different system in Northern Ireland

You also need to have a paid job, or be about to start or return to one. A paid job
could include:

sglf-employment

& apprenticeship

«awork trial or work experience

-an internship

You can'’t get a grant for voluntary work.

Your job must be based in England, Scotland or Wales.

You can’t get Access to Work if you live in the Channel Islands or the Isle of Man.

Child Maintenance Service 11



If you get other benefits:

Certain benefits may affect whether you can get an Access to Work grant.
Universal Credit, Jobseeker’s Allowance or Income Support

You can still get help from Access to Work if you work more than one hour a week.
I%nployment and Support Allowance:

H
You can only get help from Access to Work if you’re doing ‘permitted work’. It’s
permitted work if all of the following apply:

*you earn up to £120 a week
*you work less than 16 hours a week
*it's been agreed with your work coach

Child Maintenance Service

12



Types Of Help

There are seven main elements within Access to Work:

. 6TT abed

Special Aids and Equipment (SAE)
Adaptations to Premises and equipment (APE)
Travel to Work (TtwW)

Travel in Work (TiW)

Support Worker (SW)

Communication Support at Interview (CSI)

Mental Health Support Service (MHSS)

Department for Work & Pensions

13



Mental Health Support Service

Support is available for people with mental health conditions who are
either:

« Going into work
- Absent from work as a result of a mental health condition
§ Finding work difficult as a result of a mental health condition
e
Ci_

he support available from Access to Work includes:

 An assessment of needs

- A personalised six month support plan, with detailed steps designed
to keep a person in, or help them to return to work

+ Signposting to relevant intervention and support services

This service is provided for Access to Work by Remploy

Department for Work & Pensions 14




Examples of Mental Health Support

Coping strategies
This could cover a range of strategies and will depend on the

individual’s job role, their condition and how this impacts their work.

For example:
- Keeping a mood diary
Using memory aids such as Mind Maps, checklists
Relaxation techniques when under pressure
Developing a Wellbeing Recovery Action Plan
Cognitive Behavioural technigues

121 9led.

Reasonable adjustments

- Development of Flexible working, phased return, etc.

- Putting in place a buddy or mentor

- Temporary reduction in targets or reallocation

- Additional time to complete certain aspects of job role
- Regular formalised 121 meetings to review concerns

Department for Work & Pensions

15



Access to Work Grants -Cost Sharing Financial
Support

The level of grant will depend on:

Whether the applicant is employed or self employed

How long they have been in their job

. 22T abed

The type of help required
» The size of company they work for

Access to Work provides the grant with which to procure the support
that is needed, it does not provide the support itself.

Department for Work & Pensions

16



How to Apply - Contact Details

- Disabled employee makes the application
« Telephone applications - Alternative arrangements can be made.
« The Customer Service Team will take basic details

A stencil will be sent to an adviser who will call the customer and
undertake an eligibility check and appraisal of need.

* Once the appraisal has been undertaken this will help the
adviser make an informed decision to award support or identify if
a further workplace holistic assessment is required before being
able to identify what support is required ( this will mainly be for
specialist aids)

Department for Work & Pensions

17



This page is intentionally left blank



GeT obed

YMCA THAMES GATEWAY

BARKING & DAGENHAM / DARTFORD
GREENWICH / HAVERING / ASHFORD

dE0

YHMCA

HOME ABOUTUS ¥ OUR SERVICES

Cancer Referral Programme

OUR IMPACT ¥

GET INVOLVED ¥

Quick links

Have you had a diagnosis of cancer in the last five
years? Havering Council, working with YMCA
Romford, is offering a free 12 week wellbeing
programme for patients aged 16 or over, who are
Havering residents, registered with a GP.

The course will be led by specialist cancer
rehabilitation instructors. A variety of activities
will be offered to help you become active both
during and after treatment. Activities will be
tailored to each individual, accommodating all
levels of fitness and ability.

The Benefits

There are many benefits to bacoming more active
before, during and after cancer treatment,
including:

- Reduces tiredness
Relieves pain and improves flexibility

- Improves mood and quality of life

- Improves bone health and reduces the risk of
osteoporosis

- Helps to achieve and maintain a healthy weight

There are many ways to achieve these benefits,
including:
- Walking
Everyday activities at home
- Gym sessions
- Pilates/yoga classes

For further information please contact Viki
Bainsfair on 01708 770416 or via email at
vikibainsfair@ymcatg.org.

Click here to download a consent form.

KIDS CLUB >

FITNESS TIMETABLE >

BOOK CLASS ONLINE >

CHALLENGE EVENTS >

Contact Us

Romford
T 01708 766211
info.romford@ymcatg.org

Dartford
T 01322 282030
info.dartford@ymcatg.org

Greenwich

T 01322 2820320
info.greenwich@ymcatg.org
Ashford

T 01322 282030
info.ashford@ymcatg.org

Company Registration No. 05102037
No. 1133269

Etinnney & armetrr

YMCA

YMCA ana

ArFauunnaTIou




This page is intentionally left blank



	Agenda
	4 MINUTES, ACTION LOG AND INDICATOR SET
	July 2018 -Health and Wellbeing Board Action Log
	Indicator Set

	5 HEALTHWATCH ANNUAL REPORT
	Healthwatch annual report 2017 2018

	6 HEALTH IMPROVEMENT REPORT
	Health Improvement Report

	7 SEND STRATEGY
	SEND Strategy - report

	8 CANCER
	Cancer - Overview presentation
	Health Champion Programme
	Cancer services (CCG)
	Cancer - Employment presentation
	Cancer - YMCA programme


